

STATE OF ILLINOIS



HOUSE JOURNAL

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NINETY-THIRD GENERAL ASSEMBLY

55TH LEGISLATIVE DAY

THURSDAY, MAY 8, 2003

11:00 O'CLOCK A.M.

**HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Daily Journal Index
55th Legislative Day**

Action	Page(s)
Adjournment	52
Committee on Rules Referral	9
Fiscal Note Requested	10
Home Rule Note Requested	10
Messages from the Senate	10
Motions Submitted	10
Pension Note Supplied	10
Permanent Committee Assignments	9
Quorum Roll Call	5
Report from the Committee on Rules	10
Reports from Standing Committees	17
Resignations and Appointments	5
Senate Bill on First Reading	19
State Mandates Fiscal Note Requested	10

Bill Number	Legislative Action	Page(s)
HB 0312	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	13
HB 0318	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	14
HB 0527	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	14
HB 1096	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	17
HJR 0019	Adoption	51
HR 0167	Adoption	51
SB 0003	Second Reading	43
SB 0015	Third Reading	47
SB 0021	Third Reading	47
SB 0058	Second Reading	43
SB 0059	Second Reading – Amendment/s	43
SB 0076	Second Reading	42
SB 0083	Second Reading	42
SB 0110	Second Reading	42
SB 0131	Second Reading	42
SB 0149	Second Reading	42
SB 0155	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s	9
SB 0180	Second Reading	42
SB 0201	Second Reading	47
SB 0222	Committee Report	18
SB 0265	Third Reading	49
SB 0280	Committee Report	17
SB 0291	Third Reading	48
SB 0311	Third Reading	48
SB 0330	Third Reading	48
SB 0332	Third Reading	48
SB 0359	Second Reading	43
SB 0363	Second Reading	43
SB 0374	Second Reading	43
SB 0376	Second Reading	43
SB 0381	Second Reading	43
SB 0382	Second Reading	43
SB 0383	Second Reading	43

SB 0385	Second Reading – Amendment/s	43
SB 0387	Second Reading	47
SB 0402	Second Reading	47
SB 0407	Second Reading	47
SB 0414	Third Reading	48
SB 0423	Second Reading	47
SB 0424	Second Reading	47
SB 0490	Second Reading	47
SB 0562	Third Reading	48
SB 0563	Third Reading	49
SB 0642	Second Reading	42
SB 0880	Second Reading	20
SB 0902	Second Reading	20
SB 0922	Committee Report.....	18
SB 0992	Committee Report.....	17
SB 1021	Committee Report.....	19
SB 1038	Second Reading	24
SB 1039	Second Reading	24
SB 1044	Second Reading – Amendment/s	23
SB 1053	Second Reading – Amendment/s	20
SB 1054	Second Reading	20
SB 1085	Third Reading	49
SB 1093	Third Reading	49
SB 1098	Second Reading – Amendment/s	23
SB 1104	Third Reading	49
SB 1117	Third Reading	49
SB 1118	Second Reading	24
SB 1127	Second Reading – Amendment/s	24
SB 1133	Third Reading	50
SB 1167	Second Reading	36
SB 1175	Third Reading	50
SB 1176	Third Reading	50
SB 1190	Second Reading	36
SB 1199	Second Reading	36
SB 1205	Third Reading	50
SB 1207	Second Reading	36
SB 1210	Second Reading – Amendment/s	41
SB 1321	Motion Submitted	10
SB 1333	Second Reading	36
SB 1335	First Reading.....	19
SB 1342	Second Reading – Amendment/s	36
SB 1347	Third Reading	50
SB 1351	Second Reading	41
SB 1353	Second Reading – Amendment/s	40
SB 1366	Second Reading	40
SB 1368	Second Reading	40
SB 1369	Second Reading	40
SB 1375	Third Reading	50
SB 1379	Committee Report.....	19
SB 1407	Third Reading	51
SB 1409	Third Reading	51
SB 1414	Committee Report.....	18
SB 1417	Second Reading – Amendment/s	40
SB 1418	Second Reading	41
SB 1431	Second Reading	41
SB 1458	Third Reading	52
SB 1468	Third Reading	51

SB 1506	Committee Report.....	18
SB 1751	Second Reading.....	20
SB 1785	Committee Report.....	18
SB 1872	Committee Report.....	18

The House met pursuant to adjournment.
 Speaker Madigan in the chair.
 Prayer by LeeArthur Crawford, Assistant Pastor with the Victory Temple Church in Springfield.
 Representative Hassert led the House in the Pledge of Allegiance.
 By direction of the Speaker, a roll call was taken to ascertain the attendance of Members, as follows:
 117 present. (ROLL CALL 1)

By unanimous consent, Representative May was excused from attendance.

REQUEST TO BE SHOWN ON QUORUM

Having been absent when the Quorum Roll Call for Attendance was taken, this is to advise you that I, Representative May, should be recorded as present.

RESIGNATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

April 30, 2003

Mr. Anthony Rossi
 Chief House Clerk
 Illinois House of Representatives
 Room 402
 State House
 Springfield, Illinois 62706

Dear Clerk Rossi:

Please be advised that effective April 30, 2003 at 11:59 p.m., I will resign my position as State Representative of the 108th Representative District.

Sincerely,
 s/ Charles Hartke
 Charles A. "Chuck" Hartke

NOTICE

Change in the Ninety-Third General Assembly
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Appointment

William J. Grunloh
 707 Park Hills Drive
 Effingham, Illinois 62401
 108th Representative District
 Appointed: May 5, 2003
 Filed: May 6, 2003

Vacancy

Charles A. Hartke
 108th Representative District
 Resigned: April 30, 2003
 Filed: May 6, 2003

May 5, 2003

[May 8, 2003]

6

Honorable Jesse White
Secretary of State
State of Illinois
c/o Lisa Richno
111 E. Monroe Street
Springfield, IL 62756

Re: 108th District Democratic Representative Committee

Dear Ms. Richno:

This is to inform you that the Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois met on May 5, 2003, and organized pursuant to Section 8-5 of the Election Code. The Committee has declared the existence of a vacancy in the office of Representative in the General Assembly from the **108th Representative District** by virtue of the resignation of **Charles A. Hartke** on April 30, 2003.

You are hereby notified that the vacancy in the office has been filled, in accordance with Section 25-6 of the Election Code, by the appointment of **William J. Grunloh**, who resides at 707 Park Hills Drive, Effingham, IL 62401.

s/Randy D. Blackford
Chairman of the Democratic Representative Committee
for the 108th Representative District

CERTIFICATE OF ORGANIZATION

Democratic Representative Committee for the
108th Representative District, State of Illinois

This is to certify that, in accordance with Section 8-5 of the Illinois Election Code, the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois met on the May 5, 2003 in the City of Newton, County of Jasper, and within the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois, and organized by electing the following officers:

Randy D. Blackford
CHAIRMAN

605 E. Lafayette Olney, IL 62450
ADDRESS

David J. Siler
SECRETARY

713 E. Jefferson Ave., Effingham, IL 62401
ADDRESS

Signed: s/Randy Blackford
CHAIRMAN

Signed: s/David J. Siler
SECRETARY

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT TO FILL VACANCY IN THE OFFICE OF REPRESENTATIVE IN THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

WHEREAS, a vacancy currently exists in the office of Representative in the General Assembly from the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois, by reason of the resignation of Charles A. Hartke on April 30, 2003; and

WHEREAS, the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District has declared the existence of a Vacancy in said office and has voted to fill the vacancy as required by Section 25-6 of the Election Code; and

WHEREAS, at the meeting of the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District on May 5, 2003, WILLIAM J. GRUNLOH, who resides at 707 Park Hills Drive, Effingham, IL 62401, in the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois, received a majority of the total number of votes received by Charles A. Hartke at the general election at which he was elected, as voted by the respective committeemen for the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District, pursuant to Section 25-6 of the Election Code; therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED, on this 5th day of May 2003, that the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois hereby appoints WILLIAM J. GRUNLOH, who resides at 707 Park Hills Drive, Effingham, IL 62401, in the 108th Representative District of the State of Illinois, who is eligible to serve as a member of the General Assembly, and who is a member of the Democratic Party, as the representative in the General Assembly from the 108th Representative District, for the remainder of the term.

s/Randy D. Blackford

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

s/David J. Siler

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

s/Paul Johnson

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

s/Rodney Masterson

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

s/Gilbert D. Hale

Committeeman, Democratic Representative Committee for the 108th Representative District

State of Illinois)
) SS.
County of Jasper)

Subscribed and Sworn to before me on this 5th day of May 2003.

[May 8, 2003]

8

s/ Linda Griffith Huth
Notary Public

OATH OF OFFICE

State of Illinois)
) SS.
County of Effingham)

I, William J. Grunloh, do solemnly swear or affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and I will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of State Representative for the 108th Representative District to the best of my ability.

s/ William Grunloh
WILLIAM J. GRUNLOH

Subscribed and Sworn to
before me on this 7th day
of May, 2003

s/Steven P. Seymour
Notary Public or Judge

Name of Notary Public or Judge: Steven P. Seymour

May 6, 2003

Honorable Tony Rossi
Clerk of the House of
Representatives
Room 402
Capitol Building
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Dear Mr. Rossi:

This office is forwarding herewith a copy of the Notice of Vacancy from the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District, declaring the existence of a vacancy in the Office of Representative in the Ninety-Third General Assembly in the 108th Representative District, as a result of the resignation of **Charles A. Hartke** on April 30, 2003

Also enclosed is the copy of the Certificate of Appointment by the Democratic Representative Committee of the 108th Representative District of **William J. Grunloh, 707 Park Hills Drive Effingham, Illinois 62401**, to fill the vacancy in the Office of Representative, in the Ninety-Third General Assembly from the 108th Representative District.

Yours Truly,
s/ Jesse White
JESSE WHITE

Secretary of State

PERMANENT COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Representative Reitz, Chairperson from the Committee on Agriculture & Conservation, appointed the following member:

Representative William J. "Bill" Grunloh to replace Charles Hartke.

Representative Smith, Chairperson from the Committee on Appropriations: Elementary and Secondary Education, appointed the following member:

Representative William J. "Bill" Grunloh to replace Charles Hartke.

Representative Scully, Chairperson from the Committee on Commerce & Business Development, appointed the following member:

Representative William J. "Bill" Grunloh to replace Charles Hartke.

Representative Osterman, Chairperson from the Committee on Local Government, appointed the following member:

Representative William J. "Bill" Grunloh to replace Charles Hartke.

Representative McAuliffe, Chairperson from the Committee on Veterans' Affairs, appointed the following member:

Representative William J. "Bill" Grunloh to replace Charles Hartke.

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE ON RULES

Representative Currie, Chairperson, from the Committee on Rules to which the following were referred, action taken earlier today, and reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the Floor Amendment be reported "recommends be adopted":
Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 155.

The committee roll call vote on the foregoing Legislative Measures is as follows:
4, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Currie, Barbara(D), Chairperson
Y Hannig, Gary(D) (Lyons, Joe)
Y Turner, Arthur(D)

Y Black, William(R)
A Hassert, Brent(R), Republican Spokesperson

COMMITTEE ON RULES REFERRALS

Representative Currie, Chairperson of the Committee on Rules, reported the following legislative measures and/or joint action motions have been assigned as follows:

Executive: SENATE BILL 1740.

Judiciary I - Civil Law: SENATE BILL 1352.

Judiciary II - Criminal Law: SENATE BILL 240.

State Government Administration: SENATE BILL 1028.

Appropriations-General Service: HOUSE BILLS 3743, 3745, 3747, 3751, 3753, 3759, 3768, 3771, 3775, 3776, 3777, 3780, 3781, 3782, 3784, 3785, 3789, 3791, 3792, 3793, 3795 and 3796.

Appropriations-Higher Education: HOUSE BILLS 3726, 3727, 3728, 3729, 3730, 3731, 3732, 3733, 3734, 3735, 3736, 3737, 3738 and 3739.

Appropriations-Human Services: HOUSE BILLS 3744, 3746, 3748, 3754, 3766, 3767, 3770, 3774, 3783, 3786, 3787 and 3788.

Appropriations-Public Safety: HOUSE BILLS 3723, 3741, 3749, 3750, 3752, 3755, 3756, 3758, 3760, 3761, 3762, 3763, 3764, 3765, 3769, 3772, 3773, 3778, 3779, 3790 and 3794.

MOTIONS SUBMITTED

Representative Rita submitted the following written motion, which was placed in the Committee on Rules:

MOTION

I move to table Amendment 1 to SENATE BILL 1321.

PENSION NOTE SUPPLIED

A Pension Note has been supplied for HOUSE BILL 143, as amended.

REQUEST FOR FISCAL NOTE

Representative Churchill requested that a Fiscal Note be supplied for SENATE BILL 428, as amended.

REQUEST FOR STATE MANDATES FISCAL NOTE

Representative Churchill requested that a State Mandates Fiscal Note be supplied for SENATE BILL 428, as amended.

Representative Krause requested that a State Mandates Fiscal Note be supplied for SENATE BILL 802.

REQUEST FOR HOME RULE NOTE

Representative Churchill requested that a Home Rule Note be supplied for SENATE BILL 428, as amended.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Hawker, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the passage of bills of the following titles to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 2

A bill for AN ACT in relation to alcoholic liquor.

HOUSE BILL NO. 39

A bill for AN ACT in relation to Procurement Code penalties.

HOUSE BILL NO. 59

A bill for AN ACT concerning child care facilities.

HOUSE BILL NO. 60

A bill for AN ACT concerning higher education.

HOUSE BILL NO. 85

A bill for AN ACT concerning elder abuse.

HOUSE BILL NO. 87

A bill for AN ACT in relation to elderly persons and persons with disabilities.

HOUSE BILL NO. 102

A bill for AN ACT concerning forced labor.
HOUSE BILL NO. 105

A bill for AN ACT concerning open meetings.
HOUSE BILL NO. 115

A bill for AN ACT in relation to fire protection.
HOUSE BILL NO. 116

A bill for AN ACT concerning fire protection districts.
HOUSE BILL NO. 117

A bill for AN ACT concerning taxes.
HOUSE BILL NO. 121

A bill for AN ACT in relation to fire equipment.
HOUSE BILL NO. 123

A bill for AN ACT in relation to vehicles.
HOUSE BILL NO. 183

A bill for AN ACT concerning quick-take proceedings.
HOUSE BILL NO. 197

A bill for AN ACT in relation to public health.
HOUSE BILL NO. 210

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.
HOUSE BILL NO. 221

A bill for AN ACT in relation to property.
HOUSE BILL NO. 236

A bill for AN ACT concerning telecommunications.
HOUSE BILL NO. 249

A bill for AN ACT in relation to criminal law.
HOUSE BILL NO. 274

A bill for AN ACT in relation to health.
HOUSE BILL NO. 275

A bill for AN ACT in relation to health.
HOUSE BILL NO. 293

A bill for AN ACT in relation to senior citizens.
HOUSE BILL NO. 298

A bill for AN ACT concerning vehicles.
HOUSE BILL NO. 300

A bill for AN ACT in relation to local government.
Passed by the Senate, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

A message from the Senate by
Ms. Hawker, Secretary:
Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:
HOUSE BILL NO. 1490
A bill for AN ACT concerning taxes.
Passed by the Senate, May 6, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

A message from the Senate by
Ms. Hawker, Secretary:
Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the passage of bills of the following titles to-wit:
HOUSE BILL NO. 385
A bill for AN ACT concerning vehicles.

HOUSE BILL NO. 407
A bill for AN ACT in relation to public employee benefits.
HOUSE BILL NO. 462
A bill for AN ACT concerning the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District.
HOUSE BILL NO. 506
A bill for AN ACT in relation to criminal law.
HOUSE BILL NO. 525
A bill for AN ACT concerning disclosure of information.
HOUSE BILL NO. 526
A bill for AN ACT in relation to local government.
HOUSE BILL NO. 544
A bill for AN ACT concerning Fire Protection Districts.
HOUSE BILL NO. 548
A bill for AN ACT concerning pest control.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1087
A bill for AN ACT concerning the Department on Aging.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1103
A bill for AN ACT concerning human services.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1121
A bill for AN ACT authorizing a horse feed checkoff.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1150
A bill for AN ACT concerning electronic fund transfers.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1185
A bill for AN ACT in relation to public employee benefits.
HOUSE BILL NO. 1186
A bill for AN ACT concerning vehicles.
Passed by the Senate, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

A message from the Senate by
Ms. Hawker, Secretary:
Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:
HOUSE BILL 312
A bill for AN ACT in relation to criminal law.
Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:
Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 312
Passed the Senate, as amended, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1
AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 312 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:
"Section 5. The Criminal Code of 1961 is amended by changing Section 24-3.5 as follows:
(720 ILCS 5/24-3.5)
Sec. 24-3.5. Unlawful purchase of a firearm. (a) For purposes of this Section, "firearms transaction record form" means a form:
(1) executed by a transferee of a firearm stating: (i) the transferee's name and address (including county or similar political subdivision); (ii) whether the transferee is a citizen of the United States; (iii)

the transferee's State of residence; and (iv) the date and place of birth, height, weight, and race of the transferee; and

(2) on which the transferee certifies that he or she is not prohibited by federal law from transporting or shipping a firearm in interstate or foreign commerce or receiving a firearm that has been shipped or transported in interstate or foreign commerce or possessing a firearm in or affecting commerce.

(b) A person commits the offense of unlawful purchase of a firearm who knowingly purchases or attempts to purchase a firearm with the intent to deliver that firearm to another person who is prohibited by federal or State law from possessing a firearm.

(c) A person commits the offense of unlawful purchase of a firearm when he or she, in purchasing or attempting to purchase a firearm, intentionally provides false or misleading information on a United States Department of the Treasury, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms firearms transaction record form.

(d) Exemption. It is not a violation of subsection (b) of this Section for a person to make a gift or loan of a firearm to a person who is not prohibited by federal or State law from possessing a firearm if the transfer of the firearm is made in accordance with Section 3 of the Firearm Owners Identification Card Act.

(e) Sentence.

(1) A person who commits the offense of unlawful purchase of a firearm ~~by purchasing a firearm with intent to deliver the firearm in violation of subsection (b) or by purchasing a firearm in violation of subsection (c):~~

(A) is guilty of a Class 4 felony for purchasing or attempting to purchase one firearm;

(B) is guilty of a Class 3 felony for purchasing or attempting to purchase not less than 2 firearms and not more than 5 firearms at the same time or within a one year period;

(C) is guilty of a Class 2 felony for purchasing or attempting to purchase not less than 6 firearms and not more than 10 firearms at the same time or within a 2 year period;

(D) is guilty of a Class 1 felony for purchasing or attempting to purchase not less than 11 firearms and not more than 20 firearms at the same time or within a 3 year period;

(E) is guilty of a Class X felony for which the person shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment of not less than 6 years and not more than 30 years for purchasing or attempting to purchase not less than 21 firearms and not more than 30 firearms at the same time or within a 4 year period;

(F) is guilty of a Class X felony for which the person shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment of not less than 6 years and not more than 40 years for purchasing or attempting to purchase not less than 31 firearms and not more than 40 firearms at the same time or within a 5 year period;

(G) is guilty of a Class X felony for which the person shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment of not less than 6 years and not more than 50 years for purchasing or attempting to purchase more than 40 firearms at the same time or within a 6 year period.

(2) In addition to any other penalty that may be imposed for a violation of this Section, the court may sentence a person convicted of a violation of subsection (c) of this Section to a fine not to exceed \$250,000 for each violation.

(Source: P.A. 91-265, eff. 1-1-00.) Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 312 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by
Ms. Hawker, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 318

A bill for AN ACT in relation to tobacco products.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 318
Passed the Senate, as amended, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 318 as follows:
on page 1, by replacing lines 7 through 11 with the following:

""Under the control" means within the reach of the cashier or protected by other security, surveillance, or detection methods, including but not limited to electronic scanners.

"Within the line of sight" means visible to a cashier or other employee, whether directly or by means of mirrors or monitors.

"Tobacco specialty store" means a business establishment devoted primarily to the sale of tobacco, tobacco products, and accessories and in which the sale of other products is incidental."; and
by replacing lines 17 through 30 on page 1 and lines 1 through 6 on page 2 with the following:

"Section 10. Tobacco product displays. It is unlawful for any person who sells tobacco products over the counter to maintain such products in any location accessible to customers that is not within the line of sight, or under the control, of a cashier or other employee during regular business hours, except that this condition does not apply to: (i) business establishments to which persons under the age of 18 are not admitted or to which such persons are not admitted unless accompanied by a parent or other adult, or (ii) tobacco specialty stores."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 318 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Hawker, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 527

A bill for AN ACT in relation to local government.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 527

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 527 on page 1, line 19, immediately after "board", by inserting ", with the approval of the county treasurer,".

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 527 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Hawker, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 1096

A bill for AN ACT in relation to deer hunting.

Together with the attached amendments thereto (which amendments have been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 1096

Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL NO. 1096

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 7, 2003.

Linda Hawker, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 1096 on page 1, in line 5 by replacing "and 2.26" with ", 2.26, 3.2, 3.27, 3.29, and 3.30"; and on page 5, by inserting after line 32 the following:

"(520 ILCS 5/3.2) (from Ch. 61, par. 3.2)

Sec. 3.2. Hunting license; application; instruction. Before the Department or any county, city, village, township, incorporated town clerk or his duly designated agent or any other person authorized or designated by the Department to issue hunting licenses shall issue a hunting license to any person, the person shall file his application with the Department or other party authorized to issue licenses on a form provided by the Department and further give definite proof of identity and place of legal residence. Each clerk designating agents to issue licenses and stamps shall furnish the Department, within 10 days following the appointment, the names and mailing addresses of the agents. Each clerk or his duly designated agent shall be authorized to sell licenses and stamps only within the territorial area for which he was elected or appointed. No duly designated agent is authorized to furnish licenses or stamps for issuance by any other business establishment. Each application shall be executed and sworn to and shall set forth the name and description of the applicant and place of residence.

No hunting license shall be issued to any person born on or after January 1, 1980 unless he presents the person authorized to issue the license evidence that he has held a hunting license issued by the State of Illinois or another state in a prior year, or a certificate of competency as provided in this Section. Persons under 16 years of age may be issued a Lifetime Hunting or Sportsmen's Combination License as provided under Section 20-45 of the Fish and Aquatic Life Code but shall not be entitled to hunt unless they have a certificate of competency as provided in this Section and they shall have the certificate in their possession while hunting.

The Department of Natural Resources shall authorize personnel of the Department or certified volunteer instructors to conduct courses, of not less than 10 hours in length, in firearms and hunter safety, which may include training in bow and arrow safety, at regularly specified intervals throughout the State. Persons successfully completing the course shall receive a certificate of competency. The Department of Natural Resources may further cooperate with any reputable association or organization in establishing courses if the organization has as one of its objectives the promotion of safety in the handling of firearms or bow and arrow.

The Department of Natural Resources shall designate any person found by it to be competent to give instruction in the handling of firearms, hunter safety, and bow and arrow. The persons so appointed shall give the course of instruction and upon the successful completion shall issue to the person instructed a certificate of competency in the safe handling of firearms, hunter safety, and bow and arrow. No charge shall be made for any course of instruction except for materials or ammunition consumed. The Department of Natural Resources shall furnish information on the requirements of hunter safety education programs to be distributed free of charge to applicants for hunting licenses by the persons appointed and authorized to issue licenses. Funds for the conducting of firearms and hunter safety courses shall be taken from the fee charged for the Firearm Owners Identification Card.

The fee for a hunting license to hunt all species for a resident of Illinois is \$7. For residents age 65 or older, the fee is one-half of the fee charged for a hunting license to hunt all species for a resident of Illinois. Nonresidents shall be charged \$50 for a hunting license.

Nonresidents may be issued a nonresident hunting license for a period not to exceed 10 consecutive days' hunting in the State and shall be charged a fee of \$28.

A special nonresident hunting license authorizing a nonresident to take game birds by hunting on a game breeding and hunting preserve area only, established under Section 3.27, shall be issued upon proper application being made and payment of a fee equal to that for a resident hunting license. The expiration date of this license shall be on the same date March 31 of each year that game breeding and hunting preserve area licenses expire.

Each applicant for a State Migratory Waterfowl Stamp, regardless of his residence or other condition, shall pay a fee of \$10 and shall receive a stamp. Except as provided under Section 20-45 of the Fish and Aquatic Life Code, the stamp shall be signed by the person or affixed to his license or permit in a space designated by the Department for that purpose.

Each applicant for a State Habitat Stamp, regardless of his residence or other condition, shall pay a fee of \$5 and shall receive a stamp. Except as provided under Section 20-45 of the Fish and Aquatic Life Code, the stamp shall be signed by the person or affixed to his license or permit in a space designated by the Department for that purpose.

Nothing in this Section shall be construed as to require the purchase of more than one State Habitat Stamp by any person in any one license year.

The Department shall furnish the holders of hunting licenses and stamps with an insignia as evidence of possession of license, or license and stamp, as the Department may consider advisable. The insignia shall be exhibited and used as the Department may order.

All other hunting licenses and all State stamps shall expire upon March 31 of each year.

Every person holding any license, permit, or stamp issued under the provisions of this Act shall have it in his possession for immediate presentation for inspection to the officers and authorized employees of the Department, any sheriff, deputy sheriff, or any other peace officer making a demand for it. This provision shall not apply to Department owned or managed sites where it is required that all hunters deposit their license, permit, or Firearm Owner's Identification Card at the check station upon entering the hunting areas. (Source: P.A. 89-75, eff. 1-1-96; 89-338, eff. 1-1-96; 89-445, eff. 2-7-96; 89-626, eff. 8-9-96; 90-225, eff. 7-25-97.)

(520 ILCS 5/3.27) (from Ch. 61, par. 3.27)

Sec. 3.27. Any person owning, holding or controlling, by lease, which possession must be for a term of 5 or more years, any contiguous tract of land having an area of not less than 200 acres, and not more than 1280 acres, with at least 100 acres of suitable wildlife habitat, who desires to establish a game breeding and hunting preserve area, to propagate, preserve and hunt game birds shall make application to the Department for a license as herein provided. Such application shall be made under oath of the applicant or under oath of one of its principal officers if the applicant is an association, club or corporation. In the case of releasing and harvesting hand reared mallards, the tract of land, with the approval of the Department, may be smaller than that required in this Section but in all other respects the applicant shall conform to the provisions of this Act. The application shall be accompanied by a license fee of not to exceed \$100 for a Class A license or a license fee not to exceed \$200 for a Class B license.

Every licensee under this Section shall release not less than 250 Bobwhite quail or pheasants each season.

Upon receipt of such application, the Department shall inspect the proposed licensed area described in such application and the premises and facilities where game birds are to be propagated and the cover for game birds and the ability of the applicant to operate a property of this character. If the Department finds that the area meets the requirements of all applicable laws and administrative rules and that the game birds are reasonably healthy and disease free; and that the issuing of the license will otherwise be in the public interest; the Department shall approve the application and issue the license for the operation of the property described in the application with the rights and subject to the limitations in this Act prescribed.

All game breeding and hunting preserve area licenses expire on April 30 of each year.

Upon receipt of such license, the licensee shall promptly post such licensed areas at intervals of not more than 500 feet with signs to be prescribed by the Department. The boundaries of such licensed game breeding and hunting preserve areas shall also be clearly defined by natural or artificial boundaries and by signs. (Source: P.A. 85-152.)

(520 ILCS 5/3.29) (from Ch. 61, par. 3.29)

Sec. 3.29. For the purpose of this Act, game birds shall be released upon licensed game breeding and hunting preserve areas in a manner satisfactory to the Department. The licensee shall keep a register on forms prescribed by the Department which shall clearly show the number and kind of game birds released and propagated each year, the month date of release, and also the number and kind of game birds taken, the month date when taken and the disposition made of such game birds, and shall submit such reports under

oath as to game birds released, ~~propagated~~ and taken, to the Department not later than 10 days following the end of each month during the season. The Department shall keep an adequate record of the number of birds released and ~~propagated~~ on each licensed game breeding and hunting preserve area in each year and of the birds taken.

The Department shall prepare special tags suitable for use upon legs of game birds, including hand reared mallard ducks, which tags shall be of a type not removable without breaking and mutilating the tag, such tags to be used to designate birds taken upon a licensed game breeding and hunting preserve area, and such tag shall remain upon the leg of such game bird until such bird is finally prepared for consumption. Those licensed areas which dress game birds may affix the tag to the bag in which the dressed game birds are ~~bird is~~ contained. Upon application and payment of a fee of 10 cents for each such tag, the Department shall furnish licensees with such tags; ~~provided that the Department shall not in any year furnish any licensee a number of tags in excess of the number of game birds which may lawfully be taken from such licensed area as hereinbefore provided.~~ All game birds harvested on licensed areas are to be properly banded on the same day they are taken. (Source: P.A. 84-150.)

(520 ILCS 5/3.30) (from Ch. 61, par. 3.30)

Sec. 3.30. Game birds may be taken upon a Class A game breeding and hunting preserve area only during the period from September 1st to April 15th, ~~or as otherwise determined by the Director through the issuance of an Administrative Rule,~~ of each year, both dates inclusive. Game birds may be taken upon a Class B game breeding and hunting preserve area all year.

Before any person shall take or attempt to take game birds upon such licensed game breeding and hunting preserve areas, he shall first secure a hunting license in accordance with this Act. (Source: P.A. 85-152.)".

AMENDMENT NO. 2

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend House Bill 1096 on page 1, line 9, by changing "~~as provided by administrative rule,~~" to "as provided by administrative rule,".

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 1096 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES

Representative O'Brien, Chairperson, from the Committee on Judiciary II - Criminal Law to which the following were referred, action taken on May 7, 2003, and reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the bill be reported "do pass" and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Short Debate: SENATE BILL 992.

That the bill be reported "do pass as amended" and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Short Debate: SENATE BILL 280.

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 280 is as follows:

9, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y O'Brien, Mary(D), Chairperson	Y Bailey, Patricia(D)
A Bradley, Richard(D)	Y Collins, Annazette(D) (Colvin)
Y Delgado, William(D), Vice-Chairperson	Y Howard, Constance(D) (Morrow)
A Jones, Lovana(D)	Y Lindner, Patricia(R), Republican Spokesperson
A Lyons, Eileen(R)	Y Millner, John(R)
Y Rose, Chapin(R)	Y Sacia, Jim(R)
A Wait, Ronald(R)	

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 992 is as follows:

8, Yeas; 3, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y O'Brien,Mary(D), Chairperson	N Bailey,Patricia(D)
Y Bradley,Richard(D)	Y Collins,Annazette(D)
Y Delgado,William(D), Vice-Chairperson	Y Howard,Constance(D)
A Jones,Lovana(D)	Y Lindner,Patricia(R), Republican Spokesperson
A Lyons,Eileen(R)	Y Millner,John(R)
N Rose,Chapin(R)	N Sacia,Jim(R)
Y Wait,Ronald(R)	

Representative Fritchey, Chairperson, from the Committee on Judiciary I - Civil Law to which the following were referred, action taken on May 7, 2003, and reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the bills be reported "do pass as amended" and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Short Debate: SENATE BILLS 922, 1414, 1506 and 1785.

That the bill be reported "do pass" and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Standard Debate: SENATE BILL 1872.

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bills 922, 1414, 1506, 1785, is as follows:
13, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Fritchey,John(D), Chairperson	Y Bailey,Patricia(D)
Y Berrios,Maria(D)	Y Brosnahan,James(D)
A Cultra,Shane(R)	Y Froehlich,Paul(R)
A Hamos,Julie(D)	A Hoffman,Jay(D)
A Hultgren,Randall(R), Republican Spokesperson	Y Lang,Lou(D)
Y Mathias,Sidney(R)	Y May,Karen(D)
Y Nekritz,Elaine(D)	Y Osmond,JoAnn(R)
Y Rose,Chapin(R)	Y Sacia,Jim(R)
Y Scully,George(D), Vice-Chairperson	A Wait,Ronald(R)

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 1872 is as follows:
10, Yeas; 3, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Fritchey,John(D), Chairperson	A Bailey,Patricia(D)
Y Berrios,Maria(D)	Y Brosnahan,James(D)
N Cultra,Shane(R)	Y Froehlich,Paul(R)
Y Hamos,Julie(D)	A Hoffman,Jay(D)
A Hultgren,Randall(R), Republican Spokesperson	Y Lang,Lou(D)
N Mathias,Sidney(R)	Y May,Karen(D)
Y Nekritz,Elaine(D)	Y Osmond,JoAnn(R)
A Rose,Chapin(R)	A Sacia,Jim(R)
N Scully,George(D), Vice-Chairperson	Y Wait,Ronald(R)

Representative Holbrook, Chairperson, from the Committee on Environment & Energy to which the following were referred, action taken on May 7, 2003, and reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the bill be reported "do pass as amended" and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Short Debate: SENATE BILL 222.

That the bill be reported “do pass as amended” and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Standard Debate: SENATE BILL 1379.

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 222 is as follows:

11, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Holbrook,Thomas(D), Chairperson	Y Bradley,Richard(D)
Y Churchill,Robert(R)	A Collins,Annazette(D)
Y Davis,Steve(D)	Y Hamos,Julie(D)
Y Joyce,Kevin(D)	A Kosel,Renee(R)
Y Leitch,David(R)	Y Meyer,James(R), Republican Spokesperson
A Novak,John(D)	A Parke,Terry(R)
Y Reitz,Dan(D)	Y Slone,Ricca(D), Vice-Chairperson
Y Tenhouse,Art(R)	

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 1379 is as follows:

8, Yeas; 0, Nays; 3, Answering Present.

Y Holbrook,Thomas(D), Chairperson	Y Bradley,Richard(D)
P Churchill,Robert(R)	A Collins,Annazette(D)
Y Davis,Steve(D)	Y Hamos,Julie(D)
Y Joyce,Kevin(D)	A Kosel,Renee(R)
P Leitch,David(R)	Y Meyer,James(R), Republican Spokesperson
A Novak,John(D)	A Parke,Terry(R)
Y Reitz,Dan(D)	Y Slone,Ricca(D), Vice-Chairperson
P Tenhouse,Art(R)	

Representative McCarthy, Chairperson, from the Committee on Higher Education to which the following were referred, action taken on May 7, 2003, and reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the bill be reported “do pass as amended” and be placed on the order of Second Reading-- Short Debate: SENATE BILL 1021.

The committee roll call vote on Senate Bill 1021 is as follows:

8, Yeas; 5, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y McCarthy,Kevin(D), Chairperson	N Black,William(R)
N Bost,Mike(R)	Y Brady,Dan(R)
Y Brosnahan,James(D)	Y Davis,William(D)
Y Giles,Calvin(D)	Y Howard,Constance(D)
Y Jakobsson,Naomi(D)	Y Mendoza,Susana(D), Vice-Chairperson
N Myers,Richard(R)	N Rose,Chapin(R)
N Wirsing,David(R), Republican Spokesperson	

SENATE BILL ON FIRST READING

Having been printed, the following bill was taken up, read by title a first time and placed in the Committee on Rules: SENATE BILL 1335.

SENATE BILLS ON SECOND READING

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 880, 902, 1751 and 1054.

SENATE BILL 1053. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Judiciary II - Criminal Law, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1053 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Criminal Code of 1961 is amended by changing Section 17-24 and adding Article 16H as follows:

(720 ILCS 5/Art. 16H heading new)

ARTICLE 16H. ILLINOIS FINANCIAL CRIME LAW

(720 ILCS 5/16H-1 new)

Sec. 16H-1. Short title. This Article may be cited as the Illinois Financial Crime Act.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-5 new)

Sec. 16H-5. Legislative declaration. It is the public policy of this State that the substantial burden placed upon the economy of this State resulting from the rising incidence of financial crime is a matter of grave concern to the people of this State who have a right to be protected in their health, safety and welfare from the effects of this crime.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-10 new)

Sec. 16-10. Definitions. In this Article unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) "Financial crime" means an offense described in this Article.

(b) "Financial institution" means any bank, savings bank, savings and loan association, credit union, trust company, or other depository of money, or medium of savings and collective investment.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-15 new)

Sec. 16H-15. Misappropriation of financial institution property. A person commits the offense of misappropriation of a financial institution's property whenever the person knowingly misappropriates, embezzles, abstracts, purloins or willfully misapplies any of the moneys, funds or credits of such financial institution, or any moneys, funds, assets or securities entrusted to the custody or care of such financial institution, or to the custody or care of any agent, officer, director, or employee of such financial institution.

(new 720 ILCS 5/16H-20)

Sec. 16H-20. Commercial bribery involving a financial institution.

(a) A person commits the offense of commercial bribery involving a financial institution when the person confers or offers or agrees to confer any benefit upon any employee, agent, or fiduciary without the consent of the latter's employer or principal, with intent to influence his or her conduct in relation to his or her employer's or principal's affairs.

(b) An employee, agent, or fiduciary of a financial institution commits the offense of commercial bribery of a financial institution when, without the consent of his or her employer or principal, he or she solicits, accepts, or agrees to accept any benefit from another person upon an agreement or understanding that such benefit will influence his or her conduct in relation to his or her employer's or principal's affairs.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-25 new)

Sec. 16H-25. Financial institution fraud. A person commits the offense of financial institution fraud when the person knowingly executes or attempts to execute a scheme or artifice:

(1) to defraud a financial institution; or

(2) to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits, assets, securities, or other property owned by or under the custody or control of a financial institution, by means of pretenses, representations, or promises he or she knows to be false.

For the purposes of this Section, "scheme or artifice to defraud" includes a scheme or artifice to deprive a financial institution of the intangible right to honest services.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-30 new)

Sec. 16H-30. Loan fraud. A person commits the offense of loan fraud when the person knowingly, with intent to defraud, makes any false statement or report, or willfully overvalues any land, property or

security, for the purpose of influencing in any way the action of a financial institution to act upon any application, advance, discount, purchase, purchase agreement, repurchase agreement, commitment, or loan, or any change or extension of any of the same, by renewal, deferment of action or otherwise, or the acceptance, release, or substitution of security.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-35 new)

Sec. 16H-35. Concealment of collateral. A person commits the offense of concealment of collateral when the person, with intent to defraud, knowingly conceals, removes, disposes of, or converts to the person's own use or to that of another, any property mortgaged or pledged to or held by a financial institution.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-40 new)

Sec. 16H-40. Financial institution robbery. A person commits the offense of financial institution robbery when the person, by force or threat of force, or by intimidation, takes, or attempts to take, from the person or presence of another, or obtains or attempts to obtain by extortion, any property or money or any other thing of value belonging to, or in the care, custody, control, management, or possession of, a financial institution.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-45 new)

Sec. 16H-45. Conspiracy to commit a financial crime.

(a) A person commits the offense of a conspiracy to commit a financial crime when, with the intent that a violation of this Article be committed, the person agrees with another person to the commission of that offense.

(b) No person may be convicted of conspiracy to commit a financial crime unless an overt act or acts in furtherance of the agreement is alleged and proved to have been committed by that person or by a co-conspirator and the accused is a part of a common scheme or plan to engage in the unlawful activity.

(c) It shall not be a defense to the offense of a conspiracy to commit a financial crime that the person or persons with whom the accused is alleged to have conspired:

- (1) has not been prosecuted or convicted,
- (2) has been convicted of a different offense,
- (3) is not amenable to justice,
- (4) has been acquitted, or
- (5) lacked the capacity to commit the offense.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-50 new)

Sec. 16H-50. Continuing financial crimes enterprise. A person commits the offense of a continuing financial crimes enterprise when the person knowingly, within an 18 month period, commits 3 or more separate offenses under this Article, or, if involving a financial institution, any other felony offenses established under this Code.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-55 new)

Sec. 16H-55. Organizer of a continuing financial crimes enterprise.

(a) A person commits the offense of being an organizer of a continuing financial crimes enterprise when the person:

- (1) with the intent to commit an offense under this Article, or, if involving a financial institution, any other felony offense established under this Code, agrees with another person to the commission of that offense on 3 or more separate occasions within an 18 month period, and
- (2) with respect to the other persons within the conspiracy, occupies a position of organizer, supervisor, or financier or other position of management.

(b) The person with whom the accused agreed to commit the 3 or more offenses under this Article, or, if involving a financial institution, any other felony offenses established under this Code, need not be the same person or persons for each offense, as long as the accused was a part of the common scheme or plan to engage in each of the 3 or more alleged offenses.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-60 new)

Sec. 16H-60. Sentence.

(a) A financial crime, the full value of which does not exceed \$300, is a Class A misdemeanor.

(b) A person who has been convicted of a financial crime, the full value of which does not exceed \$300, and who has been previously convicted of a financial crime or any type of theft, robbery, armed robbery, burglary, residential burglary, possession of burglary tools, or home invasion, is guilty of a Class 4 felony. When a person has such prior conviction, the information or indictment charging that person shall state such prior conviction so as to give notice of the State's intention to treat the charge as a felony. The fact of

such prior conviction is not an element of the offense and may not be disclosed to the jury during trial unless otherwise permitted by issues properly raised during such trial.

(c) A financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$300 but does not exceed \$10,000, is a Class 3 felony. When a charge of financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$300 but does not exceed \$10,000, is brought, the value of the financial crime involved is an element of the offense to be resolved by the trier of fact as either exceeding or not exceeding \$300.

(d) A financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$10,000 but does not exceed \$100,000, is a Class 2 felony. When a charge of financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$10,000 but does not exceed \$100,000, is brought, the value of the financial crime involved is an element of the offense to be resolved by the trier of fact as either exceeding or not exceeding \$10,000.

(e) A financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$100,000, is a Class 1 felony. When a charge of financial crime, the full value of which exceeds \$100,000, is brought, the value of the financial crime involved is an element of the offense to be resolved by the trier of fact as either exceeding or not exceeding \$100,000.

(f) A financial crime which is a financial institution robbery is a Class 1 felony.

(g) A financial crime which is a continuing financial crimes enterprise is a Class 1 felony.

(h) A financial crime which is the offense of being an organizer of a continuing financial crimes enterprise is a Class X felony.

(i) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section, a financial crime which is loan fraud in connection with a loan secured by residential real estate is a Class 4 felony.

(720 ILCS 5/16H-65 new)

Sec. 16H-65. Period of limitations. The period of limitations for prosecution of any offense defined in this Article begins at the time when the last act in furtherance of the offense is committed.

(720 ILCS 5/17-24)

Sec. 17-24. Fraudulent schemes and artifices. (a) Fraud by wire, radio, or television.

(1) A person commits wire fraud when he or she:

(A) devises or intends to devise a scheme or artifice to defraud or to obtain money or property by means of false pretenses, representations, or promises; and

(B) (i) transmits or causes to be transmitted from within this State; or

(ii) transmits or causes to be transmitted so that it is received by a person within this State; or

(iii) transmits or causes to be transmitted so that it is reasonably foreseeable that it will be accessed by a person within this State:

any writings, signals, pictures, sounds, or electronic or electric impulses by means of wire, radio, or television communications for the purpose of executing the scheme or artifice.

(2) A scheme or artifice to defraud using electronic transmissions is deemed to occur in the county from which a transmission is sent, if the transmission is sent from within this State, the county in which a person within this State receives the transmission, and the county in which a person who is within this State is located when the person accesses a transmission.

(3) Wire fraud is a Class 3 felony.

(b) Mail fraud.

(1) A person commits mail fraud when he or she:

(A) devises or intends to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud or to obtain money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises, or to sell, dispose of, loan, exchange, alter, give away, distribute, supply, or furnish or procure for unlawful use any counterfeit obligation, security, or other article, or anything represented to be or intimidated or held out to be such counterfeit or spurious article; and

(B) for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting so to do, places in any post office or authorized depository for mail matter within this State, any matter or thing whatever to be delivered by the Postal Service, or deposits or causes to be deposited in this State by mail or by private or commercial carrier according to the direction on the matter or thing, or at the place at which it is directed to be delivered by the person to whom it is addressed, any such matter or thing.

(2) A scheme or artifice to defraud using a government or private carrier is deemed to occur in the county in which mail or other matter is deposited with the Postal Service or a private commercial carrier for delivery, if deposited with the Postal Service or a private or commercial carrier within this State and the county in which a person within this State receives the mail or other matter from the Postal Service or a private or commercial carrier.

(3) Mail fraud is a Class 3 felony.

(c) ~~(Blank). Financial institution fraud.~~

~~(1) A person is guilty of financial institution fraud who knowingly executes or attempts to execute a scheme or artifice:~~

~~(i) to defraud a financial institution; or~~

~~(ii) to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits, assets, securities, or other property owned by, or under the custody or control of a financial institution, by means of pretenses, representations, or promises he or she knows to be false.~~

~~(2) Financial institution fraud is a Class 3 felony.~~

(d) The period of limitations for prosecution of any offense defined in this Section begins at the time when the last act in furtherance of the scheme or artifice is committed.

(e) In this Section:

(1) "Scheme or artifice to defraud" includes a scheme or artifice to deprive another of the intangible right to honest services.

(2) ~~(Blank). "Financial institution" has the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (i) of subsection (A) of Section 17-1 of this Code.~~

(Source: P.A. 91-228, eff. 1-1-00; 92-16, eff. 6-28-01.) Section 99. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1044. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Revenue, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1044 by replacing Section 5 with the following:

"Section 5. The Department of Public Health Powers and Duties Law of the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois is amended by adding Section 2310-358 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2310/2310-358 new)

Sec. 2310-358. Grants to the Les Turner ALS Foundation. Subject to appropriation, the Department of Public Health shall make grants from the Lou Gehrig's Disease (ALS) Research Fund, a special fund in the State treasury, to the Les Turner ALS Foundation for research on Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (ALS)."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1098. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Public Utilities, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1098 on page 1, line 5, by replacing "Sections 10 and 17" with "Sections 10, 17, and 35"; and

on page 2, immediately below line 21, by inserting the following:

"Sufficient positive balance" means a dollar amount greater than or equal to the monthly wireless 911 surcharge amount."; and

on page 4, by replacing lines 4 and 5 with the following:

"address, or the location associated with the MTN for each active prepaid wireless telephone that has a sufficient positive balance as of the last day of each month, if that information is available. No wireless carrier"; and

on page 5, immediately below line 6, by inserting the following:

"(50 ILCS 751/35) (Section scheduled to be repealed on April 1, 2005)

Sec. 35. Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund; reimbursement. To recover costs from the Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund, the wireless carrier shall submit sworn invoices to the Department of Central Management Services. In no event may any invoice for payment be approved for (i) costs that are not related to compliance with the requirements established by the wireless enhanced 9-1-1 mandates of the

Federal Communications Commission, (ii) costs with respect to any wireless enhanced 9-1-1 service that is not operable at the time the invoice is submitted, or (iii) costs of any wireless carrier exceeding 125% of the wireless emergency services charges remitted to the Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund by the wireless carrier under Section 17(b) unless the wireless carrier received prior approval for the expenditures from the Department of Central Management Services.

If in any month the total amount of invoices submitted to the Department of Central Management Services and approved for payment exceeds the amount available in the Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund, wireless carriers that have invoices approved for payment shall receive a pro-rata share of the amount available in the Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund based on the relative amount of their approved invoices available that month, and the balance of the payments shall be carried into the following months, ~~and shall include appropriate interest at the statutory rate,~~ until all of the approved payments are made.

A wireless carrier may not receive payment from the Wireless Carrier Reimbursement Fund for its costs of providing wireless enhanced 9-1-1 services in an area when a unit of local government or emergency telephone system board provides wireless 9-1-1 services in that area and was imposing and collecting a wireless carrier surcharge prior to July 1, 1998.

The Department of Central Management Services shall maintain detailed records of all receipts and disbursements and shall provide an annual accounting of all receipts and disbursements to the Auditor General.

The Department of Central Management Services shall adopt rules to govern the reimbursement process. (Source: P.A. 91-660, eff. 12-22-99.)".

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 1039, 1038, and 1118.

SENATE BILL 1127. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Local Government, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1127 as follows:

on page 1, by replacing line 1 with the following:

"AN ACT in relation to courts."; and

on page 1, by replacing lines 4 and 5 with the following:

"Section 5. The Clerks of Courts Act is amended by changing Sections 27.2, 27.2a, and 27.3b and adding Section 16.5 as follows:

(705 ILCS 105/16.5 new)

Sec. 16.5. Assisting court users; clerk or deputy clerk.

(a) In this Section:

"Court" means the circuit court.

"Form" means a model or skeleton of an instrument to be used in a judicial proceeding or legal transaction, containing the principal necessary matters, the proper technical terms or phrases and whatever else is necessary to make it formally correct and capable of being adopted to the circumstances of the specific case or transaction.

(b) Court staff must treat all litigants fairly and equally. Court staff must not provide assistance for the purpose of giving one party an advantage over another, nor give assistance to one party that they would not give to an opponent.

(c) Court staff shall do all of the following:

(1) Provide public information contained in dockets, calendars, case files, indexes, or existing reports.

(2) Provide copies of common routinely employed State and local court rules and procedures, for applicable fees and costs.

(3) Advise litigants as to where to find statutes and rules without advising whether or not a particular statute or rule is applicable.

(4) Identify and provide some applicable forms according to law, without providing advice or instructions as to any specific course of action.

(5) Answer questions regarding content of the form, but not questions on how the litigant should phrase his or her response on the forms.

(6) Define terms commonly used in court processes in cases where the definition is not at issue.

(7) Provide telephone numbers for lawyer referral services, local attorney rosters, or other assistance services known to the court staff.

(8) Provide appropriate aids and services for individuals with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC 12101.

(9) Provide simplified forms to help with the writing and filing of a petition.

(705 ILCS 105/27.2) (from Ch. 25, par. 27.2)

Sec. 27.2. The fees of the clerks of the circuit court in all counties having a population in excess of 500,000 inhabitants but less than 3,000,000 inhabitants in the instances described in this Section shall be as provided in this Section. In those instances where a minimum and maximum fee is stated, counties with more than 500,000 inhabitants but less than 3,000,000 inhabitants must charge the minimum fee listed in this Section and may charge up to the maximum fee if the county board has by resolution increased the fee. In addition, the minimum fees authorized in this Section shall apply to all units of local government and school districts in counties with more than 3,000,000 inhabitants. The fees shall be paid in advance and shall be as follows:

(a) Civil Cases.

The fee for filing a complaint, petition, or other pleading initiating a civil action, with the following exceptions, shall be a minimum of \$150 and a maximum of \$190.

(A) When the amount of money or damages or the value of personal property claimed does not exceed \$250, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$15.

(B) When that amount exceeds \$250 but does not exceed \$1,000, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(C) When that amount exceeds \$1,000 but does not exceed \$2500, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$50.

(D) When that amount exceeds \$2500 but does not exceed \$5,000, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$100.

(D-5) When the amount exceeds \$5,000 but does not exceed \$15,000, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$150.

(E) For the exercise of eminent domain, \$150. For each additional lot or tract of land or right or interest therein subject to be condemned, the damages in respect to which shall require separate assessment by a jury, \$150.

(F) No fees shall be charged by the clerk to a petitioner in any order of protection including, but not limited to, filing, modifying, withdrawing, certifying, or photocopying petitions for orders of protection, or for issuing alias summons, or for any related filing service, certifying, modifying, reconsidering, vacating, or photocopying any orders of protection.

(b) Forcible Entry and Detainer.

In each forcible entry and detainer case when the plaintiff seeks possession only or unites with his or her claim for possession of the property a claim for rent or damages or both in the amount of \$15,000 or less, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$75. When the plaintiff unites his or her claim for possession with a claim for rent or damages or both exceeding \$15,000, a minimum of \$150 and a maximum of \$225.

(c) Counterclaim or Joining Third Party Defendant.

When any defendant files a counterclaim as part of his or her answer or otherwise or joins another party as a third party defendant, or both, the defendant shall pay a fee for each counterclaim or third party action in an amount equal to the fee he or she would have had to pay had he or she brought a separate action for the relief sought in the counterclaim or against the third party defendant, less the amount of the appearance fee, if that has been paid.

(d) Confession of Judgment.

In a confession of judgment when the amount does not exceed \$1500, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$60. When the amount exceeds \$1500, but does not exceed \$5,000, \$75. When the amount exceeds \$5,000, but does not exceed \$15,000, \$175. When the amount exceeds \$15,000, a minimum of \$200 and a maximum of \$250.

(e) Appearance.

The fee for filing an appearance in each civil case shall be a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75, except as follows:

(A) When the plaintiff in a forcible entry and detainer case seeks possession only, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(B) When the amount in the case does not exceed \$1500, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(C) When the amount in the case exceeds \$1500 but does not exceed \$15,000, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$60.

(f) Garnishment, Wage Deduction, and Citation.

In garnishment affidavit, wage deduction affidavit, and citation petition when the amount does not exceed \$1,000, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$15; when the amount exceeds \$1,000 but does not exceed \$5,000, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$30; and when the amount exceeds \$5,000, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$50.

(g) Petition to Vacate, ~~or Modify, or Reconsider.~~

(1) Petition to vacate, ~~or modify, or reconsider~~ any final judgment or order of court, except in forcible entry and detainer cases and small claims cases or a petition to reopen an estate, to modify, terminate, or enforce a judgment or order for child or spousal support, or to modify, suspend, or terminate an order for withholding, if filed before 30 days after the entry of the judgment or order, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$50.

(2) Petition to vacate, ~~or modify, or reconsider~~ any final judgment or order of court, except a petition to modify, terminate, or enforce a judgment or order for child or spousal support or to modify, suspend, or terminate an order for withholding, if filed later than 30 days after the entry of the judgment or order, a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$75.

(3) Petition to vacate order of bond forfeiture, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(h) Mailing.

When the clerk is required to mail, the fee will be a minimum of \$6 and a maximum of \$10, plus the cost of postage.

(i) Certified Copies.

Each certified copy of a judgment after the first, except in small claims and forcible entry and detainer cases, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$15.

(j) Habeas Corpus.

For filing a petition for relief by habeas corpus, a minimum of \$80 and a maximum of \$125.

(k) Certification, Authentication, and Reproduction.

(1) Each certification or authentication for taking the acknowledgment of a deed or other instrument in writing with the seal of office, a minimum of \$4 and a maximum of \$6.

(2) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, under 100 pages, plus delivery and costs, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75.

(3) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, over 100 pages, plus delivery and costs, a minimum of \$120 and a maximum of \$150.

(4) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, over 200 pages, an additional fee of a minimum of 20 and a maximum of 25 cents per page.

(5) For reproduction of any document contained in the clerk's files:

(A) First page, \$2.

(B) Next 19 pages, 50 cents per page.

(C) All remaining pages, 25 cents per page.

(l) Remands.

In any cases remanded to the Circuit Court from the Supreme Court or the Appellate Court for a new trial, the clerk shall file the remanding order and reinstate the case with either its original number or a new number. The Clerk shall not charge any new or additional fee for the reinstatement. Upon reinstatement the Clerk shall advise the parties of the reinstatement. A party shall have the same right to a jury trial on remand and reinstatement as he or she had before the appeal, and no additional or new fee or charge shall be made for a jury trial after remand.

(m) Record Search.

For each record search, within a division or municipal district, the clerk shall be entitled to a search fee of a minimum of \$4 and a maximum of \$6 for each year searched.

(n) Hard Copy.

For each page of hard copy print output, when case records are maintained on an automated medium, the clerk shall be entitled to a fee of a minimum of \$4 and a maximum of \$6.

(o) Index Inquiry and Other Records.

No fee shall be charged for a single plaintiff/defendant index inquiry or single case record inquiry when this request is made in person and the records are maintained in a current automated medium, and when no hard copy print output is requested. The fees to be charged for management records, multiple case records, and multiple journal records may be specified by the Chief Judge pursuant to the guidelines for access and dissemination of information approved by the Supreme Court.

(p) Commitment Petitions.

For filing commitment petitions under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$50.

(q) Alias Summons.

For each alias summons or citation issued by the clerk, a minimum of \$4 and a maximum of \$5.

(r) Other Fees.

Any fees not covered in this Section shall be set by rule or administrative order of the Circuit Court with the approval of the Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts.

The clerk of the circuit court may provide additional services for which there is no fee specified by statute in connection with the operation of the clerk's office as may be requested by the public and agreed to by the clerk and approved by the chief judge of the circuit court. Any charges for additional services shall be as agreed to between the clerk and the party making the request and approved by the chief judge of the circuit court. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to require any clerk to provide any service not otherwise required by law.

(s) Jury Services.

The clerk shall be entitled to receive, in addition to other fees allowed by law, the sum of a minimum of \$192.50 and a maximum of \$212.50, as a fee for the services of a jury in every civil action not quasi-criminal in its nature and not a proceeding for the exercise of the right of eminent domain and in every other action wherein the right of trial by jury is or may be given by law. The jury fee shall be paid by the party demanding a jury at the time of filing the jury demand. If the fee is not paid by either party, no jury shall be called in the action or proceeding, and the same shall be tried by the court without a jury.

(t) Voluntary Assignment.

For filing each deed of voluntary assignment, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$20; for recording the same, a minimum of 25¢ and a maximum of 50¢; for each 100 words. Exceptions filed to claims presented to an assignee of a debtor who has made a voluntary assignment for the benefit of creditors shall be considered and treated, for the purpose of taxing costs therein, as actions in which the party or parties filing the exceptions shall be considered as party or parties plaintiff, and the claimant or claimants as party or parties defendant, and those parties respectively shall pay to the clerk the same fees as provided by this Section to be paid in other actions.

(u) Expungement Petition.

The clerk shall be entitled to receive a fee of a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$60 for each expungement petition filed and an additional fee of a minimum of \$2 and a maximum of \$4 for each certified copy of an order to expunge arrest records.

(v) Probate.

The clerk is entitled to receive the fees specified in this subsection (v), which shall be paid in advance, except that, for good cause shown, the court may suspend, reduce, or release the costs payable under this subsection:

(1) For administration of the estate of a decedent (whether testate or intestate) or of a missing person, a minimum of \$100 and a maximum of \$150, plus the fees specified in subsection (v)(3), except:

(A) When the value of the real and personal property does not exceed \$15,000, the fee shall be a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(B) When (i) proof of heirship alone is made, (ii) a domestic or foreign will is admitted to probate without administration (including proof of heirship), or (iii) letters of office are issued for a particular purpose without administration of the estate, the fee shall be a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(2) For administration of the estate of a ward, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75, plus the fees specified in subsection (v)(3), except:

(A) When the value of the real and personal property does not exceed \$15,000, the fee shall be a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(B) When (i) letters of office are issued to a guardian of the person or persons, but not of the estate or (ii) letters of office are issued in the estate of a ward without administration of the estate, including filing or joining in the filing of a tax return or releasing a mortgage or consenting to the marriage of the ward, the fee shall be a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$20.

(3) In addition to the fees payable under subsection (v)(1) or (v)(2) of this Section, the following fees are payable:

(A) For each account (other than one final account) filed in the estate of a decedent, or ward, a minimum of \$15 and a maximum of \$25.

(B) For filing a claim in an estate when the amount claimed is \$150 or more but less than \$500, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$20; when the amount claimed is \$500 or more but less than \$10,000, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40; when the amount claimed is \$10,000 or more, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$60; provided that the court in allowing a claim may add to the amount allowed the filing fee paid by the claimant.

(C) For filing in an estate a claim, petition, or supplemental proceeding based upon an action seeking equitable relief including the construction or contest of a will, enforcement of a contract to make a will, and proceedings involving testamentary trusts or the appointment of testamentary trustees, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$60.

(D) For filing in an estate (i) the appearance of any person for the purpose of consent or (ii) the appearance of an executor, administrator, administrator to collect, guardian, guardian ad litem, or special administrator, no fee.

(E) Except as provided in subsection (v)(3)(D), for filing the appearance of any person or persons, a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$30.

(F) For each jury demand, a minimum of \$102.50 and a maximum of \$137.50.

(G) For disposition of the collection of a judgment or settlement of an action or claim for wrongful death of a decedent or of any cause of action of a ward, when there is no other administration of the estate, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$50, less any amount paid under subsection (v)(1)(B) or (v)(2)(B) except that if the amount involved does not exceed \$5,000, the fee, including any amount paid under subsection (v)(1)(B) or (v)(2)(B), shall be a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$20.

(H) For each certified copy of letters of office, of court order or other certification, a minimum of \$1 and a maximum of \$2, plus a minimum of 50¢ per page; and a maximum of \$1 per page in excess of 3 pages for the document certified.

(I) For each exemplification, a minimum of \$1 and a maximum of \$2, plus the fee for certification.

(4) The executor, administrator, guardian, petitioner, or other interested person or his or her attorney shall pay the cost of publication by the clerk directly to the newspaper.

(5) The person on whose behalf a charge is incurred for witness, court reporter, appraiser, or other miscellaneous fee shall pay the same directly to the person entitled thereto.

(6) The executor, administrator, guardian, petitioner, or other interested person or his attorney shall pay to the clerk all postage charges incurred by the clerk in mailing petitions, orders, notices, or other documents pursuant to the provisions of the Probate Act of 1975.

(w) Criminal and Quasi-Criminal Costs and Fees.

(1) The clerk shall be entitled to costs in all criminal and quasi-criminal cases from each person convicted or sentenced to supervision therein as follows:

(A) Felony complaints, a minimum of \$80 and a maximum of \$125.

(B) Misdemeanor complaints, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75.

(C) Business offense complaints, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75.

(D) Petty offense complaints, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$75.

(E) Minor traffic or ordinance violations, \$20.

(F) When court appearance required, \$30.

(G) Motions to vacate or amend final orders, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(H) Motions to vacate bond forfeiture orders, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$30.

(I) Motions to vacate ex parte judgments, whenever filed, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$30.

(J) Motions to vacate judgment on forfeitures, whenever filed, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$25.

(K) Motions to vacate "failure to appear" or "failure to comply" notices sent to the Secretary of

State, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(2) In counties having a population of more than 500,000 but fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants, when the violation complaint is issued by a municipal police department, the clerk shall be entitled to costs from each person convicted therein as follows:

(A) Minor traffic or ordinance violations, \$10.

(B) When court appearance required, \$15.

(3) In ordinance violation cases punishable by fine only, the clerk of the circuit court shall be entitled to receive, unless the fee is excused upon a finding by the court that the defendant is indigent, in addition to other fees or costs allowed or imposed by law, the sum of a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$112.50 as a fee for the services of a jury. The jury fee shall be paid by the defendant at the time of filing his or her jury demand. If the fee is not so paid by the defendant, no jury shall be called, and the case shall be tried by the court without a jury.

(x) Transcripts of Judgment.

For the filing of a transcript of judgment, the clerk shall be entitled to the same fee as if it were the commencement of new suit.

(y) Change of Venue.

(1) For the filing of a change of case on a change of venue, the clerk shall be entitled to the same fee as if it were the commencement of a new suit.

(2) The fee for the preparation and certification of a record on a change of venue to another jurisdiction, when original documents are forwarded, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(z) Tax objection complaints.

For each tax objection complaint containing one or more tax objections, regardless of the number of parcels involved or the number of taxpayers joining in the complaint, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$50.

(aa) Tax Deeds.

(1) Petition for tax deed, if only one parcel is involved, a minimum of \$150 and a maximum of \$250.

(2) For each additional parcel, add a fee of a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$100.

(bb) Collections.

(1) For all collections made of others, except the State and county and except in maintenance or child support cases, a sum equal to a minimum of 2.5% and a maximum of 3.0% of the amount collected and turned over.

(2) Interest earned on any funds held by the clerk shall be turned over to the county general fund as an earning of the office.

(3) For any check, draft, or other bank instrument returned to the clerk for non-sufficient funds, account closed, or payment stopped, \$25.

(4) In child support and maintenance cases, the clerk, if authorized by an ordinance of the county board, may collect an annual fee of up to \$36 from the person making payment for maintaining child support records and the processing of support orders to the State of Illinois KIDS system and the recording of payments issued by the State Disbursement Unit for the official record of the Court. This fee shall be in addition to and separate from amounts ordered to be paid as maintenance or child support and shall be deposited into a Separate Maintenance and Child Support Collection Fund, of which the clerk shall be the custodian, ex-officio, to be used by the clerk to maintain child support orders and record all payments issued by the State Disbursement Unit for the official record of the Court. The clerk may recover from the person making the maintenance or child support payment any additional cost incurred in the collection of this annual fee.

The clerk shall also be entitled to a fee of \$5 for certifications made to the Secretary of State as provided in Section 7-703 of the Family Financial Responsibility Law and these fees shall also be deposited into the Separate Maintenance and Child Support Collection Fund.

(cc) Corrections of Numbers.

For correction of the case number, case title, or attorney computer identification number, if required by rule of court, on any document filed in the clerk's office, to be charged against the party that filed the document, a minimum of \$15 and a maximum of \$25.

(dd) Exceptions.

The fee requirements of this Section shall not apply to police departments or other law enforcement agencies. In this Section, "law enforcement agency" means an agency of the State or a unit of local government which is vested by law or ordinance with the duty to maintain public order and to enforce criminal laws or ordinances. "Law enforcement agency" also means the Attorney General or any state's

attorney. The fee requirements of this Section shall not apply to any action instituted under subsection (b) of Section 11-31-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code by a private owner or tenant of real property within 1200 feet of a dangerous or unsafe building seeking an order compelling the owner or owners of the building to take any of the actions authorized under that subsection.

(ee) Adoptions.

(1) For an adoption.....\$65

(2) Upon good cause shown, the court may waive the adoption filing fee in a special needs adoption. The term "special needs adoption" shall have the meaning ascribed to it by the Illinois Department of Children and Family Services.

(ff) Adoption exemptions.

No fee other than that set forth in subsection (ee) shall be charged to any person in connection with an adoption proceeding.

(gg) Unpaid fees.

Unless a court ordered payment schedule is implemented or the fee requirements of this Section are waived pursuant to court order, the clerk of the court may add to any unpaid fees and costs under this Section a delinquency amount equal to 5% of the unpaid fees that remain unpaid after 30 days, 10% of the unpaid fees that remain unpaid after 60 days, and 15% of the unpaid fees that remain unpaid after 90 days. Notice to those parties may be made by signage posting or publication. The clerk of the court may after a period of 90 days release to credit reporting agencies information regarding unpaid amounts. The additional delinquency amounts collected under this Section shall be used to defray additional administrative costs incurred by the clerk of the circuit court in collecting unpaid fees and costs.

(Source: P.A. 91-321, eff. 1-1-00; 91-612, eff. 10-1-99; 92-16, eff. 6-28-01; 92-521, eff. 6-1-02.)

(705 ILCS 105/27.2a) (from Ch. 25, par. 27.2a)

Sec. 27.2a. The fees of the clerks of the circuit court in all counties having a population of 3,000,000 or more inhabitants in the instances described in this Section shall be as provided in this Section. In those instances where a minimum and maximum fee is stated, the clerk of the circuit court must charge the minimum fee listed and may charge up to the maximum fee if the county board has by resolution increased the fee. The fees shall be paid in advance and shall be as follows:

(a) Civil Cases.

The fee for filing a complaint, petition, or other pleading initiating a civil action, with the following exceptions, shall be a minimum of \$190 and a maximum of \$240.

(A) When the amount of money or damages or the value of personal property claimed does not exceed \$250, a minimum of \$15 and a maximum of \$22.

(B) When that amount exceeds \$250 but does not exceed \$1000, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$75.

(C) When that amount exceeds \$1000 but does not exceed \$2500, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$80.

(D) When that amount exceeds \$2500 but does not exceed \$5000, a minimum of \$100 and a maximum of \$130.

(E) When that amount exceeds \$5000 but does not exceed \$15,000, \$150.

(F) For the exercise of eminent domain, \$150. For each additional lot or tract of land or right or interest therein subject to be condemned, the damages in respect to which shall require separate assessment by a jury, \$150.

(G) For the final determination of parking, standing, and compliance violations and final administrative decisions issued after hearings regarding vehicle immobilization and impoundment made pursuant to Sections 3-704.1, 6-306.5, and 11-208.3 of the Illinois Vehicle Code, \$25.

(H) No fees shall be charged by the clerk to a petitioner in any order of protection including, but not limited to, filing, modifying, withdrawing, certifying, or photocopying petitions for orders of protection, or for issuing alias summons, or for any related filing service, certifying, modifying, reconsidering, vacating, or photocopying any orders of protection.

(b) Forcible Entry and Detainer.

In each forcible entry and detainer case when the plaintiff seeks possession only or unites with his or her claim for possession of the property a claim for rent or damages or both in the amount of \$15,000 or less, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$140. When the plaintiff unites his or her claim for possession with a claim for rent or damages or both exceeding \$15,000, a minimum of \$225 and a maximum of \$335.

(c) Counterclaim or Joining Third Party Defendant.

When any defendant files a counterclaim as part of his or her answer or otherwise or joins another party as a third party defendant, or both, the defendant shall pay a fee for each counterclaim or third party action in an amount equal to the fee he or she would have had to pay had he or she brought a separate action for the relief sought in the counterclaim or against the third party defendant, less the amount of the appearance fee, if that has been paid.

(d) Confession of Judgment.

In a confession of judgment when the amount does not exceed \$1500, a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$70. When the amount exceeds \$1500, but does not exceed \$5000, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$150. When the amount exceeds \$5000, but does not exceed \$15,000, a minimum of \$175 and a maximum of \$260. When the amount exceeds \$15,000, a minimum of \$250 and a maximum of \$310.

(e) Appearance.

The fee for filing an appearance in each civil case shall be a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110, except as follows:

(A) When the plaintiff in a forcible entry and detainer case seeks possession only, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$80.

(B) When the amount in the case does not exceed \$1500, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$80.

(C) When that amount exceeds \$1500 but does not exceed \$15,000, a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$90.

(f) Garnishment, Wage Deduction, and Citation.

In garnishment affidavit, wage deduction affidavit, and citation petition when the amount does not exceed \$1,000, a minimum of \$15 and a maximum of \$25; when the amount exceeds \$1,000 but does not exceed \$5,000, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$45; and when the amount exceeds \$5,000, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$80.

(g) Petition to Vacate, ~~or~~ Modify, or Reconsider.

(1) Petition to vacate, ~~or~~ modify, or reconsider any final judgment or order of court, except in forcible entry and detainer cases and small claims cases or a petition to reopen an estate, to modify, terminate, or enforce a judgment or order for child or spousal support, or to modify, suspend, or terminate an order for withholding, if filed before 30 days after the entry of the judgment or order, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$60.

(2) Petition to vacate, ~~or~~ modify, or reconsider any final judgment or order of court, except a petition to modify, terminate, or enforce a judgment or order for child or spousal support or to modify, suspend, or terminate an order for withholding, if filed later than 30 days after the entry of the judgment or order, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$90.

(3) Petition to vacate order of bond forfeiture, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$80.

(h) Mailing.

When the clerk is required to mail, the fee will be a minimum of \$10 and a maximum of \$15, plus the cost of postage.

(i) Certified Copies.

Each certified copy of a judgment after the first, except in small claims and forcible entry and detainer cases, a minimum of \$15 and a maximum of \$20.

(j) Habeas Corpus.

For filing a petition for relief by habeas corpus, a minimum of \$125 and a maximum of \$190.

(k) Certification, Authentication, and Reproduction.

(1) Each certification or authentication for taking the acknowledgment of a deed or other instrument in writing with the seal of office, a minimum of \$6 and a maximum of \$9.

(2) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, under 100 pages, plus delivery and costs, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110.

(3) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, over 100 pages, plus delivery and costs, a minimum of \$150 and a maximum of \$185.

(4) Court appeals when original documents are forwarded, over 200 pages, an additional fee of a minimum of 25 and a maximum of 30 cents per page.

(5) For reproduction of any document contained in the clerk's files:

(A) First page, \$2.

(B) Next 19 pages, 50 cents per page.

(C) All remaining pages, 25 cents per page.

(l) Remands.

In any cases remanded to the Circuit Court from the Supreme Court or the Appellate Court for a new trial, the clerk shall file the remanding order and reinstate the case with either its original number or a new number. The Clerk shall not charge any new or additional fee for the reinstatement. Upon reinstatement the Clerk shall advise the parties of the reinstatement. A party shall have the same right to a jury trial on remand and reinstatement as he or she had before the appeal, and no additional or new fee or charge shall be made for a jury trial after remand.

(m) Record Search.

For each record search, within a division or municipal district, the clerk shall be entitled to a search fee of a minimum of \$6 and a maximum of \$9 for each year searched.

(n) Hard Copy.

For each page of hard copy print output, when case records are maintained on an automated medium, the clerk shall be entitled to a fee of a minimum of \$6 and a maximum of \$9.

(o) Index Inquiry and Other Records.

No fee shall be charged for a single plaintiff/defendant index inquiry or single case record inquiry when this request is made in person and the records are maintained in a current automated medium, and when no hard copy print output is requested. The fees to be charged for management records, multiple case records, and multiple journal records may be specified by the Chief Judge pursuant to the guidelines for access and dissemination of information approved by the Supreme Court.

(p) Commitment Petitions.

For filing commitment petitions under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$100.

(q) Alias Summons.

For each alias summons or citation issued by the clerk, a minimum of \$5 and a maximum of \$6.

(r) Other Fees.

Any fees not covered in this Section shall be set by rule or administrative order of the Circuit Court with the approval of the Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts.

The clerk of the circuit court may provide additional services for which there is no fee specified by statute in connection with the operation of the clerk's office as may be requested by the public and agreed to by the clerk and approved by the chief judge of the circuit court. Any charges for additional services shall be as agreed to between the clerk and the party making the request and approved by the chief judge of the circuit court. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to require any clerk to provide any service not otherwise required by law.

(s) Jury Services.

The clerk shall be entitled to receive, in addition to other fees allowed by law, the sum of a minimum of \$212.50 and maximum of \$230, as a fee for the services of a jury in every civil action not quasi-criminal in its nature and not a proceeding for the exercise of the right of eminent domain and in every other action wherein the right of trial by jury is or may be given by law. The jury fee shall be paid by the party demanding a jury at the time of filing the jury demand. If the fee is not paid by either party, no jury shall be called in the action or proceeding, and the same shall be tried by the court without a jury.

(t) Voluntary Assignment.

For filing each deed of voluntary assignment, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40; for recording the same, a minimum of \$0.50 and a maximum of \$0.80 for each 100 words. Exceptions filed to claims presented to an assignee of a debtor who has made a voluntary assignment for the benefit of creditors shall be considered and treated, for the purpose of taxing costs therein, as actions in which the party or parties filing the exceptions shall be considered as party or parties plaintiff, and the claimant or claimants as party or parties defendant, and those parties respectively shall pay to the clerk the same fees as provided by this Section to be paid in other actions.

(u) Expungement Petition.

The clerk shall be entitled to receive a fee of a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$120 for each expungement petition filed and an additional fee of a minimum of \$4 and a maximum of \$8 for each certified copy of an order to expunge arrest records.

(v) Probate.

The clerk is entitled to receive the fees specified in this subsection (v), which shall be paid in advance, except that, for good cause shown, the court may suspend, reduce, or release the costs payable under this subsection:

- (1) For administration of the estate of a decedent (whether testate or intestate) or of a missing

person, a minimum of \$150 and a maximum of \$225, plus the fees specified in subsection (v)(3), except:

(A) When the value of the real and personal property does not exceed \$15,000, the fee shall be a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$65.

(B) When (i) proof of heirship alone is made, (ii) a domestic or foreign will is admitted to probate without administration (including proof of heirship), or (iii) letters of office are issued for a particular purpose without administration of the estate, the fee shall be a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$65.

(2) For administration of the estate of a ward, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110, plus the fees specified in subsection (v)(3), except:

(A) When the value of the real and personal property does not exceed \$15,000, the fee shall be a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$65.

(B) When (i) letters of office are issued to a guardian of the person or persons, but not of the estate or (ii) letters of office are issued in the estate of a ward without administration of the estate, including filing or joining in the filing of a tax return or releasing a mortgage or consenting to the marriage of the ward, the fee shall be a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(3) In addition to the fees payable under subsection (v)(1) or (v)(2) of this Section, the following fees are payable:

(A) For each account (other than one final account) filed in the estate of a decedent, or ward, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(B) For filing a claim in an estate when the amount claimed is \$150 or more but less than \$500, a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40; when the amount claimed is \$500 or more but less than \$10,000, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$65; when the amount claimed is \$10,000 or more, a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$90; provided that the court in allowing a claim may add to the amount allowed the filing fee paid by the claimant.

(C) For filing in an estate a claim, petition, or supplemental proceeding based upon an action seeking equitable relief including the construction or contest of a will, enforcement of a contract to make a will, and proceedings involving testamentary trusts or the appointment of testamentary trustees, a minimum of \$60 and a maximum of \$90.

(D) For filing in an estate (i) the appearance of any person for the purpose of consent or (ii) the appearance of an executor, administrator, administrator to collect, guardian, guardian ad litem, or special administrator, no fee.

(E) Except as provided in subsection (v)(3)(D), for filing the appearance of any person or persons, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$90.

(F) For each jury demand, a minimum of \$137.50 and a maximum of \$180.

(G) For disposition of the collection of a judgment or settlement of an action or claim for wrongful death of a decedent or of any cause of action of a ward, when there is no other administration of the estate, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$80, less any amount paid under subsection (v)(1)(B) or (v)(2)(B) except that if the amount involved does not exceed \$5,000, the fee, including any amount paid under subsection (v)(1)(B) or (v)(2)(B), shall be a minimum of \$20 and a maximum of \$40.

(H) For each certified copy of letters of office, of court order or other certification, a minimum of \$2 and a maximum of \$4, plus \$1 per page in excess of 3 pages for the document certified.

(I) For each exemplification, \$2, plus the fee for certification.

(4) The executor, administrator, guardian, petitioner, or other interested person or his or her attorney shall pay the cost of publication by the clerk directly to the newspaper.

(5) The person on whose behalf a charge is incurred for witness, court reporter, appraiser, or other miscellaneous fee shall pay the same directly to the person entitled thereto.

(6) The executor, administrator, guardian, petitioner, or other interested person or his or her attorney shall pay to the clerk all postage charges incurred by the clerk in mailing petitions, orders, notices, or other documents pursuant to the provisions of the Probate Act of 1975.

(w) Criminal and Quasi-Criminal Costs and Fees.

(1) The clerk shall be entitled to costs in all criminal and quasi-criminal cases from each person convicted or sentenced to supervision therein as follows:

(A) Felony complaints, a minimum of \$125 and a maximum of \$190.

(B) Misdemeanor complaints, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110.

(C) Business offense complaints, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110.

(D) Petty offense complaints, a minimum of \$75 and a maximum of \$110.

- (E) Minor traffic or ordinance violations, \$30.
- (F) When court appearance required, \$50.
- (G) Motions to vacate or amend final orders, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$80.
- (H) Motions to vacate bond forfeiture orders, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$45.
- (I) Motions to vacate ex parte judgments, whenever filed, a minimum of \$30 and a maximum of \$45.
- (J) Motions to vacate judgment on forfeitures, whenever filed, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$30.
- (K) Motions to vacate "failure to appear" or "failure to comply" notices sent to the Secretary of State, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$50.
- (2) In counties having a population of 3,000,000 or more, when the violation complaint is issued by a municipal police department, the clerk shall be entitled to costs from each person convicted therein as follows:
 - (A) Minor traffic or ordinance violations, \$30.
 - (B) When court appearance required, \$50.
- (3) In ordinance violation cases punishable by fine only, the clerk of the circuit court shall be entitled to receive, unless the fee is excused upon a finding by the court that the defendant is indigent, in addition to other fees or costs allowed or imposed by law, the sum of a minimum of \$112.50 and a maximum of \$250 as a fee for the services of a jury. The jury fee shall be paid by the defendant at the time of filing his or her jury demand. If the fee is not so paid by the defendant, no jury shall be called, and the case shall be tried by the court without a jury.
- (x) Transcripts of Judgment.

For the filing of a transcript of judgment, the clerk shall be entitled to the same fee as if it were the commencement of a new suit.
- (y) Change of Venue.
 - (1) For the filing of a change of case on a change of venue, the clerk shall be entitled to the same fee as if it were the commencement of a new suit.
 - (2) The fee for the preparation and certification of a record on a change of venue to another jurisdiction, when original documents are forwarded, a minimum of \$40 and a maximum of \$65.
- (z) Tax objection complaints.

For each tax objection complaint containing one or more tax objections, regardless of the number of parcels involved or the number of taxpayers joining in the complaint, a minimum of \$50 and a maximum of \$100.
- (aa) Tax Deeds.
 - (1) Petition for tax deed, if only one parcel is involved, a minimum of \$250 and a maximum of \$400.
 - (2) For each additional parcel, add a fee of a minimum of \$100 and a maximum of \$200.
- (bb) Collections.
 - (1) For all collections made of others, except the State and county and except in maintenance or child support cases, a sum equal to 3.0% of the amount collected and turned over.
 - (2) Interest earned on any funds held by the clerk shall be turned over to the county general fund as an earning of the office.
 - (3) For any check, draft, or other bank instrument returned to the clerk for non-sufficient funds, account closed, or payment stopped, \$25.
 - (4) In child support and maintenance cases, the clerk, if authorized by an ordinance of the county board, may collect an annual fee of up to \$36 from the person making payment for maintaining child support records and the processing of support orders to the State of Illinois KIDS system and the recording of payments issued by the State Disbursement Unit for the official record of the Court. This fee shall be in addition to and separate from amounts ordered to be paid as maintenance or child support and shall be deposited into a Separate Maintenance and Child Support Collection Fund, of which the clerk shall be the custodian, ex-officio, to be used by the clerk to maintain child support orders and record all payments issued by the State Disbursement Unit for the official record of the Court. The clerk may recover from the person making the maintenance or child support payment any additional cost incurred in the collection of this annual fee.

The clerk shall also be entitled to a fee of \$5 for certifications made to the Secretary of State as provided in Section 7-703 of the Family Financial Responsibility Law and these fees shall also be deposited into the Separate Maintenance and Child Support Collection Fund.
- (cc) Corrections of Numbers.

For correction of the case number, case title, or attorney computer identification number, if required by rule of court, on any document filed in the clerk's office, to be charged against the party that filed the document, a minimum of \$25 and a maximum of \$40.

(dd) Exceptions.

(1) The fee requirements of this Section shall not apply to police departments or other law enforcement agencies. In this Section, "law enforcement agency" means an agency of the State or a unit of local government which is vested by law or ordinance with the duty to maintain public order and to enforce criminal laws or ordinances. "Law enforcement agency" also means the Attorney General or any state's attorney.

(2) No fee provided herein shall be charged to any unit of local government or school district. The fee requirements of this Section shall not apply to any action instituted under subsection (b) of Section 11-31-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code by a private owner or tenant of real property within 1200 feet of a dangerous or unsafe building seeking an order compelling the owner or owners of the building to take any of the actions authorized under that subsection.

(ee) Adoption.

(1) For an adoption.....\$65

(2) Upon good cause shown, the court may waive the adoption filing fee in a special needs adoption. The term "special needs adoption" shall have the meaning ascribed to it by the Illinois Department of Children and Family Services.

(ff) Adoption exemptions.

No fee other than that set forth in subsection (ee) shall be charged to any person in connection with an adoption proceeding.

(Source: P.A. 91-321, eff. 1-1-00; 91-612, eff. 10-1-99; 91-821, eff. 6-13-00; 92-521, eff. 6-1-02.)"; and on page 1, by inserting below line 30 the following:

"Section 10. The Circuit Court Clerk Regulation Act is amended by adding Section 1.5 as follows:
(705 ILCS 110/1.5 new)

Sec. 1.5. Assisting court users; clerk or deputy clerks; prohibition; unauthorized information and assistance. Court staff may not do any of the following:

(1) Provide legal advice or recommend a specific of action for an individual. If a court user asks for legal advice, court staff shall advise the person to seek the assistance of an attorney.

(2) Apply the law to the facts of a given case, or give directions regarding how an individual should respond or behave in any part of the legal process.

(3) Recommend whether to file a petition or pleading, or suggest phrasing or content of pleadings.

(4) Fill out forms, or direct litigants as to how to fill out forms. If the litigant has a physical disability or is illiterate and therefore unable to fill in a form, and the litigant explains the disability to the clerk's staff member and requests appropriate assistance, then the staff member may fill in the form with the exact words provided by the litigant and another staff member must witness the action. If the litigant is seeking an order of protection, the clerk, in accordance with the Illinois Domestic Violence Act of 1986, may provide simplified forms and clerical assistance to help with the writing and the filing of a petition.

(5) Recommend specific people against whom to file petitions or pleadings.

(6) Recommend specific types of claims or arguments to assert in pleadings or at trial.

(7) Recommend what damages to seek or specific individuals from whom to seek damages.

(8) Recommend specific questions to ask witnesses or litigants.

(9) Recommend specific techniques for presenting evidence in pleadings or at trial.

(10) Recommend which objection to raise regarding an opponent's pleadings or motions at trial or when and specifically how to raise them.

(11) Recommend when an individual should request or oppose a continuance.

(12) Recommend when or whether an individual should settle a dispute.

(13) Recommend whether an individual should appeal a judge's decision.

(14) Interpret the meaning or implication of statutes or appellate court decisions as they might apply to an individual case.

(15) Perform legal research.

(16) Predict the outcome of a case, strategy, or action.

(17) Reveal the outcome of a case before the information is officially released to the litigants or public.

Section 15. The Illinois Marriage and Dissolution of Marriage Act is amended by changing Section 706.3 as follows:

(750 ILCS 5/706.3)

Sec. 706.3. Information concerning obligors. (a) In this Section:

"Arrearage", "delinquency", "obligor", and "order for support" have the meanings attributed to those terms in the Income Withholding for Support Act.

"Consumer reporting agency" has the meaning attributed to that term in Section 603(f) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. 1681a(f).

(b) Whenever a court of competent jurisdiction finds that an obligor either owes an arrearage of more than \$10,000 or is delinquent in payment of an amount equal to at least 3 months' support obligation pursuant to an order for support, the court shall direct the clerk of the court to make information concerning the obligor available to consumer reporting agencies.

(c) Whenever a court of competent jurisdiction finds that an obligor either owes an arrearage of more than \$10,000 or is delinquent in payment of an amount equal to at least 3 months' support obligation pursuant to an order for support, the court shall direct the clerk of the court to cause the obligor's name and address to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area in which the obligor resides. The clerk shall cause the obligor's name and address to be published only after sending to the obligor at the obligor's last known address, by certified mail, return receipt requested, a notice of intent to publish the information. This subsection (c) applies only if the obligor resides in the county in which the clerk of the court holds office.

(d) Whenever an obligor fails to pay the child support annual fee for a period of 3 years, the clerk of the court may notify credit reporting agencies of the arrearage and may make the amount owed part of the obligor's credit history. (Source: P.A. 90-466, eff. 1-1-98; 90-673, eff. 1-1-99.)"

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 1167, 1190, 1199, 1207 and 1333.

SENATE BILL 1342. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Judiciary II - Criminal Law, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1342 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Unified Code of Corrections is amended by changing Section 5-2-4 as follows:

(730 ILCS 5/5-2-4) (from Ch. 38, par. 1005-2-4)

Sec. 5-2-4. Proceedings after Acquittal by Reason of Insanity. (a) After a finding or verdict of not guilty by reason of insanity under Sections 104-25, 115-3 or 115-4 of The Code of Criminal Procedure of 1963, the defendant shall be ordered to the Department of Human Services for an evaluation as to whether he is ~~subject to involuntary admission or~~ in need of mental health services. The order shall specify whether the evaluation shall be conducted on an inpatient or outpatient basis. If the evaluation is to be conducted on an inpatient basis, the defendant shall be placed in a secure setting unless the Court determines that there are compelling reasons why such placement is not necessary. After the evaluation and during the period of time required to determine the appropriate placement, the defendant shall remain in jail. Upon completion of the placement process the sheriff shall be notified and shall transport the defendant to the designated facility.

The Department shall provide the Court with a report of its evaluation within 30 days of the date of this order. The Court shall hold a hearing as provided under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code to determine if the individual is: ~~(a) subject to involuntary admission;~~ (a) ~~(b)~~ in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis; (b) ~~(c)~~ in need of mental health services on an outpatient basis; (c) ~~(d)~~ a person not in need of mental health services. The Court shall enter its findings.

If the defendant is found to be ~~subject to involuntary admission or~~ in need of mental health services on an inpatient care basis, the Court shall order the defendant to the Department of Human Services. The defendant shall be placed in a secure setting unless the Court determines that there are compelling reasons

why such placement is not necessary. Such defendants placed in a secure setting shall not be permitted outside the facility's housing unit unless escorted or accompanied by personnel of the Department of Human Services or with the prior approval of the Court for unsupervised on-grounds privileges as provided herein. Any defendant placed in a secure setting pursuant to this Section, transported to court hearings or other necessary appointments off facility grounds by personnel of the Department of Human Services, shall ~~may~~ be placed in security devices or otherwise secured during the period of transportation to assure secure transport of the defendant and the safety of Department of Human Services personnel and others. These security measures shall not constitute restraint as defined in the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code. If the defendant is found to be in need of mental health services, but not on an inpatient care basis, the Court shall conditionally release the defendant, under such conditions as set forth in this Section as will reasonably assure the defendant's satisfactory progress and participation in treatment or rehabilitation and the safety of the defendant and ~~or~~ others. If the Court finds the person not in need of mental health services, then the Court shall order the defendant discharged from custody.

(1) Definitions: For the purposes of this Section:

(A) ~~(Blank). "Subject to involuntary admission" means: a defendant has been found not guilty by reason of insanity; and~~

~~(i) who is mentally ill and who because of his mental illness is reasonably expected to inflict serious physical harm upon himself or another in the near future; or~~

~~(ii) who is mentally ill and who because of his illness is unable to provide for his basic physical needs so as to guard himself from serious harm.~~

(B) "In need of mental health services on an inpatient basis" means: a defendant who has been found not guilty by reason of insanity ~~who is not subject to involuntary admission~~ but who due to mental illness is reasonably expected to inflict serious physical harm upon himself or another and who would benefit from inpatient care or is in need of inpatient care.

(C) "In need of mental health services on an outpatient basis" means: a defendant who has been found not guilty by reason of insanity who is not ~~subject to involuntary admission or~~ in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis, but is in need of outpatient care, drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation programs, community adjustment programs, individual, group, or family therapy, or chemotherapy.

(D) "Conditional Release" means: the release from either the custody of the Department of Human Services or the custody of the Court of a person who has been found not guilty by reason of insanity under such conditions as the Court may impose which reasonably assure the defendant's satisfactory progress in treatment or habilitation and the safety of the defendant and others. The Court shall consider such terms and conditions which may include, but need not be limited to, outpatient care, alcoholic and drug rehabilitation programs, community adjustment programs, individual, group, family, and chemotherapy, random testing to ensure the defendant's timely and continuous taking of any medicines prescribed to control or manage his or her conduct or mental state, and periodic checks with the legal authorities and/or the Department of Human Services. The court may order as a condition of conditional release that the defendant not contact the victim of the offense that resulted in the finding or verdict of not guilty by reason of insanity or any other person. The Court may order the Department of Human Services to provide care to any person conditionally released under this Section. The Department may contract with any public or private agency in order to discharge any responsibilities imposed under this Section. The Department shall monitor the provision of services to persons conditionally released under this Section and provide periodic reports to the Court concerning the services and the condition of the defendant. Whenever a person is conditionally released pursuant to this Section, the State's Attorney for the county in which the hearing is held shall designate in writing the name, telephone number, and address of a person employed by him or her who shall be notified in the event that either the reporting agency or the Department decides that the conditional release of the defendant should be revoked or modified pursuant to subsection (i) of this Section. The person or facility rendering the outpatient care shall be required to periodically report to the Court on the progress of the defendant. Such conditional release shall be for a period of five years. However, unless the defendant, the person or facility rendering the treatment, therapy, program or outpatient care, the Department, or the State's Attorney may petition ~~petitions~~ the Court for an extension of the conditional release period for an additional 5 ~~three~~ years. Upon receipt of such a petition, the Court shall hold a hearing consistent with the provisions of this paragraph (a) and paragraph (f) of this Section, shall determine whether the defendant should continue to be subject to the terms of conditional release, and shall enter an order either extending the defendant's period of conditional release for an a single additional 5 ~~three~~ year period or discharging the defendant. Additional 5-year periods of conditional release may be ordered following a hearing as

provided in this Section. However, in no event shall the defendant's period of conditional release continue beyond the maximum period of commitment ordered by the court pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section exceed eight years. These provisions for extension of conditional release shall only apply to defendants conditionally released on or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 93rd General Assembly July 1, 1979. However the extension provisions of Public Act 83-1449 apply only to defendants charged with a forcible felony.

(E) "Facility director" means the chief officer of a mental health or developmental disabilities facility or his or her designee or the supervisor of a program of treatment or habilitation or his or her designee. "Designee" may include a physician, clinical psychologist, social worker, or nurse.

(b) If the Court finds the defendant ~~subject to involuntary admission~~ or in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis, the admission, detention, care, treatment or habilitation, treatment plans, review proceedings, including review of treatment and treatment plans, and discharge of the defendant after such order shall be under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code, except that the initial order for admission of a defendant acquitted of a felony by reason of insanity shall be for an indefinite period of time. Such period of commitment shall not exceed the maximum length of time that the defendant would have been required to serve, less credit for good behavior as provided in Section 5-4-1 of the Unified Code of Corrections, before becoming eligible for release had he been convicted of and received the maximum sentence for the most serious crime for which he has been acquitted by reason of insanity. The Court shall determine the maximum period of commitment by an appropriate order. During this period of time, the defendant shall not be permitted to be in the community in any manner, including but not limited to off-grounds privileges, with or without escort by personnel of the Department of Human Services, unsupervised on-grounds privileges, discharge or conditional or temporary release, except by a plan as provided in this Section. In no event shall a defendant's continued unauthorized absence be a basis for discharge. Not more than 30 days after admission and every 60 days thereafter so long as the initial order remains in effect, the facility director shall file a treatment plan report in writing with the court and forward a copy of the treatment plan report to the clerk of the court, the State's Attorney, and the defendant's attorney, if the defendant is represented by counsel, or to a person authorized by the defendant under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Confidentiality Act to be sent a copy of the report. The report shall include an opinion as to whether the defendant is currently ~~subject to involuntary admission~~, in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis, or in need of mental health services on an outpatient basis. The report shall also summarize the basis for those findings and provide a current summary of the following items from the treatment plan: (1) an assessment of the defendant's treatment needs, (2) a description of the services recommended for treatment, (3) the goals of each type of element of service, (4) an anticipated timetable for the accomplishment of the goals, and (5) a designation of the qualified professional responsible for the implementation of the plan. The report may also include unsupervised on-grounds privileges, off-grounds privileges (with or without escort by personnel of the Department of Human Services), home visits and participation in work programs, but only where such privileges have been approved by specific court order, which order may include such conditions on the defendant as the Court may deem appropriate and necessary to reasonably assure the defendant's satisfactory progress in treatment and the safety of the defendant and others.

(c) Every defendant acquitted of a felony by reason of insanity and subsequently found to be ~~subject to involuntary admission~~ or in need of mental health services shall be represented by counsel in all proceedings under this Section and under the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code.

(1) The Court shall appoint as counsel the public defender or an attorney licensed by this State.

(2) Upon filing with the Court of a verified statement of legal services rendered by the private attorney appointed pursuant to paragraph (1) of this subsection, the Court shall determine a reasonable fee for such services. If the defendant is unable to pay the fee, the Court shall enter an order upon the State to pay the entire fee or such amount as the defendant is unable to pay from funds appropriated by the General Assembly for that purpose.

(d) When the facility director determines that:

(1) the defendant is no longer ~~subject to involuntary admission~~ or in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis; and

(2) the defendant may be conditionally released because he or she is still in need of mental health services or that the defendant may be discharged as not in need of any mental health services; or

(3) the defendant no longer requires placement in a secure setting;

the facility director shall give written notice to the Court, State's Attorney and defense attorney. Such notice shall set forth in detail the basis for the recommendation of the facility director, and specify clearly the

recommendations, if any, of the facility director, concerning conditional release. Within 30 days of the notification by the facility director, the Court shall set a hearing and make a finding as to whether the defendant is:

- (i) ~~(blank) subject to involuntary admission~~; or
- (ii) in need of mental health services in the form of inpatient care; or
- (iii) in need of mental health services but not subject to ~~involuntary admission~~ or inpatient care; or
- (iv) no longer in need of mental health services; or
- (v) no longer requires placement in a secure setting.

Upon finding by the Court, the Court shall enter its findings and such appropriate order as provided in subsection (a) of this Section.

(e) A defendant admitted pursuant to this Section, or any person on his behalf, may file a petition for treatment plan review, transfer to a non-secure setting within the Department of Human Services or discharge or conditional release under the standards of this Section in the Court which rendered the verdict. Upon receipt of a petition for treatment plan review, transfer to a non-secure setting or discharge or conditional release, the Court shall set a hearing to be held within 120 days. Thereafter, no new petition may be filed for ~~180~~ 120 days without leave of the Court.

(f) The Court shall direct that notice of the time and place of the hearing be served upon the defendant, the facility director, the State's Attorney, and the defendant's attorney. If requested by either the State or the defense or if the Court feels it is appropriate, an impartial examination of the defendant by a psychiatrist or clinical psychologist as defined in Section 1-103 of the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code who is not in the employ of the Department of Human Services shall be ordered, and the report considered at the time of the hearing.

(g) The findings of the Court shall be established by clear and convincing evidence. The burden of proof and the burden of going forth with the evidence rest with the defendant or any person on the defendant's behalf when a hearing is held to review a petition filed by or on behalf of the defendant. The evidence shall be presented in open Court with the right of confrontation and cross-examination. Such evidence may include, but is not limited to:

- (1) whether the defendant appreciates the harm caused by the defendant to others and the community by his or her prior conduct that resulted in the finding of not guilty by reason of insanity;
- (2) Whether the person appreciates the criminality of conduct similiar to the conduct for which he or she was originally charged in this matter;
- (3) the current state of the defendant's illness;
- (4) what, if any, medications the defendant is taking to control his or her mental illness;
- (5) what, if any, adverse physical side effects the medication has on the defendant;
- (6) the length of time it would take for the defendant's mental health to deteriorate if the defendant stopped taking prescribed medication;
- (7) the defendant's history or potential for alcohol and drug abuse;
- (8) the defendant's past criminal history;
- (9) any specialized physical or medical needs of the defendant;
- (10) any family participation or involvement expected upon release and what is the willingness and ability of the family to participate or be involved;
- (11) the defendant's potential to be a danger to himself, herself, or others; and
- (12) any other factor or factors the court deems appropriate.

(h) If the Court finds, consistent with the provisions of this Section, that the defendant is no longer in need of mental health services it shall order the facility director to discharge the defendant. If the Court finds, consistent with the provisions of this Section, that the defendant is in need of mental health services, and no longer in need of inpatient care, it shall order the facility director to release the defendant under such conditions as the Court deems appropriate and as provided by this Section. Such conditional release shall be imposed for a period of ~~5~~ five years as provided in paragraph (1) (D) of subsection (a) and shall be subject to later modification by the Court as provided by this Section. If the Court finds consistent with the provisions in this Section that the defendant is ~~subject to involuntary admission~~ or in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis, it shall order the facility director not to discharge or release the defendant in accordance with paragraph (b) of this Section.

(i) If within the period of the defendant's conditional release the State's Attorney determines that the defendant has not fulfilled the conditions of his or her release, the State's Attorney may petition the Court to revoke or modify the conditional release of the defendant. Upon the filing of such petition the defendant

may be remanded to the custody of the Department, or to any other mental health facility designated by the Department, pending the resolution of the petition. Nothing in this Section shall prevent the emergency admission of a defendant pursuant to Article VI of Chapter III of the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code or the voluntary admission of the defendant pursuant to Article IV of Chapter III of the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code. If the Court determines, after hearing evidence, that the defendant has not fulfilled the conditions of release, the Court shall order a hearing to be held consistent with the provisions of paragraph (f) and (g) of this Section. At such hearing, if the Court finds that the defendant is ~~subject to involuntary admission~~ or in need of mental health services on an inpatient basis, it shall enter an order remanding him or her to the Department of Human Services or other facility. If the defendant is remanded to the Department of Human Services, he or she shall be placed in a secure setting unless the Court determines that there are compelling reasons that such placement is not necessary. If the Court finds that the defendant continues to be in need of mental health services but not on an inpatient basis, it may modify the conditions of the original release in order to reasonably assure the defendant's satisfactory progress in treatment and his or her safety and the safety of others in accordance with the standards established in paragraph (1) (D) of subsection (a). ~~In no event shall such conditional release be longer than eight years.~~ Nothing in this Section shall limit a Court's contempt powers or any other powers of a Court.

(j) An order of admission under this Section does not affect the remedy of habeas corpus.

(k) In the event of a conflict between this Section and the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code or the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Confidentiality Act, the provisions of this Section shall govern.

(l) This amendatory Act shall apply to all persons who have been found not guilty by reason of insanity and who are presently committed to the Department of Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities (now the Department of Human Services).

(m) The Clerk of the Court shall, after the entry of an order of transfer to a non-secure setting of the Department of Human Services or discharge or conditional release, transmit a certified copy of the order to the Department of Human Services, and the sheriff of the county from which the defendant was admitted. In cases where the arrest of the defendant or the commission of the offense took place in any municipality with a population of more than 25,000 persons, the Clerk of the Court shall also transmit a certified copy of the order of discharge or conditional release to the proper law enforcement agency for said municipality provided the municipality has requested such notice in writing. (Source: P.A. 90-105, eff. 7-11-97; 90-593, eff. 6-19-98; 91-536, eff. 1-1-00; 91-770, eff. 1-1-01.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1353. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Local Government, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1353 on page 1, lines 8 and 9, by replacing "of general road and bridge funds or" with "of permanent road funds, general road and bridge funds, or".

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 1366, 1368 and 1369.

SENATE BILL 1417. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Insurance, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1417 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Insurance Code is amended by changing Section 356x as follows:

(215 ILCS 5/356x)

Sec. 356x. Coverage for colorectal cancer screening; application. (a) An insurer shall provide in each group policy, contract, or certificate of accident and health insurance amended, delivered, issued, or renewed covering persons who are residents of this State coverage for colorectal cancer screening with sigmoidoscopy or fecal occult blood testing once every 3 years for persons who are at least 50 years old.

(b) For persons who may be classified as high risk for colorectal cancer because the person or a first degree family member of the person has a history of colorectal cancer, the coverage required under subsection (a) shall apply to persons who have attained at least 30 years of age.

(c) This Section does not apply to agreements, contracts, or policies that provide coverage for a specified disease or other limited benefit coverage. (Source: P.A. 90-741, eff. 1-1-99.)"

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 1418, 1431 and 1351.

SENATE BILL 1210. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Local Government, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1210 on page 2, immediately below line 2, by inserting the following:

"Section 10. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by changing Section 10-2.1-4 as follows:

(65 ILCS 5/10-2.1-4) (from Ch. 24, par. 10-2.1-4)

Sec. 10-2.1-4. Fire and police departments; Appointment of members; Certificates of appointments.

The board of fire and police commissioners shall appoint all officers and members of the fire and police departments of the municipality, including the chief of police and the chief of the fire department, unless the council or board of trustees shall by ordinance as to them otherwise provide; except as otherwise provided in this Section, and except that in any municipality which adopts or has adopted this Division 2.1 and also adopts or has adopted Article 5 of this Code, the chief of police and the chief of the fire department shall be appointed by the municipal manager, if it is provided by ordinance in such municipality that such chiefs, or either of them, shall not be appointed by the board of fire and police commissioners.

If the chief of the fire department or the chief of the police department or both of them are appointed in the manner provided by ordinance, they may be removed or discharged by the appointing authority. In such case the appointing authority shall file with the corporate authorities the reasons for such removal or discharge, which removal or discharge shall not become effective unless confirmed by a majority vote of the corporate authorities.

If a member of the department is appointed chief of police or chief of the fire department prior to being eligible to retire on pension, he shall be considered as on furlough from the rank he held immediately prior to his appointment as chief. If he resigns as chief or is discharged as chief prior to attaining eligibility to retire on pension, he shall revert to and be established in whatever rank he currently holds, except for previously appointed positions such prior rank, and thereafter be entitled to all the benefits and emoluments of that such prior rank, without regard as to whether a vacancy then exists in that such rank.

All appointments to each department other than that of the lowest rank, however, shall be from the rank next below that to which the appointment is made except as otherwise provided in this Section, and except that the chief of police and the chief of the fire department may be appointed from among members of the police and fire departments, respectively, regardless of rank, unless the council or board of trustees shall have by ordinance as to them otherwise provided. A chief of police or the chief of the fire department, having been appointed from among members of the police or fire department, respectively, shall be permitted, regardless of rank, to take promotional exams and be promoted to a higher classified rank than he currently holds, without having to resign as chief of police or chief of the fire department.

The sole authority to issue certificates of appointment shall be vested in the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners and all certificates of appointments issued to any officer or member of the fire or police department of a municipality shall be signed by the chairman and secretary respectively of the board of fire and police commissioners of such municipality, upon appointment of such officer or member of the fire and police department of such municipality by action of the board of fire and police commissioners.

The term "policemen" as used in this Division does not include auxiliary policemen except as provided for in Section 10-2.1-6.

Any full time member of a regular fire or police department of any municipality which comes under the provisions of this Division or adopts this Division 2.1 or which has adopted any of the prior Acts pertaining to fire and police commissioners, is a city officer.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the Chief of Police of a department in a non-homerule municipality of more than 130,000 inhabitants may, without the advice or consent of the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners, appoint up to 6 officers who shall be known as deputy chiefs or assistant deputy chiefs, and whose rank shall be immediately below that of Chief. The deputy or assistant deputy chiefs may be appointed from any rank of sworn officers of that municipality, but no person who is not such a sworn officer may be so appointed. Such deputy chief or assistant deputy chief shall have the authority to direct and issue orders to all employees of the Department holding the rank of captain or any lower rank. A deputy chief of police or assistant deputy chief of police, having been appointed from any rank of sworn officers of that municipality, shall be permitted, regardless of rank, to take promotional exams and be promoted to a higher classified rank than he currently holds, without having to resign as deputy chief of police or assistant deputy chief of police.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, a non-homerule municipality of 130,000 or fewer inhabitants, through its council or board of trustees, may, by ordinance, provide for a position of deputy chief to be appointed by the chief of the police department. The ordinance shall provide for no more than one deputy chief position if the police department has fewer than 25 full-time police officers and for no more than 2 deputy chief positions if the police department has 25 or more full-time police officers. The deputy chief position shall be an exempt rank immediately below that of Chief. The deputy chief may be appointed from any rank of sworn, full-time officers of the municipality's police department, but must have at least 5 years of full-time service as a police officer in that department. A deputy chief shall serve at the discretion of the Chief and, if removed from the position, shall revert to the rank currently held, without regard as to whether a vacancy exists in that rank. A deputy chief of police, having been appointed from any rank of sworn full-time officers of that municipality's police department, shall be permitted, regardless of rank, to take promotional exams and be promoted to a higher classified rank than he currently holds, without having to resign as deputy chief of police ~~the rank held immediately prior to appointment to the deputy chief position.~~

No municipality having a population less than 1,000,000 shall require that any fireman appointed to the lowest rank serve a probationary employment period of longer than one year. The limitation on periods of probationary employment provided in this amendatory Act of 1989 is an exclusive power and function of the State. Pursuant to subsection (h) of Section 6 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution, a home rule municipality having a population less than 1,000,000 must comply with this limitation on periods of probationary employment, which is a denial and limitation of home rule powers. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, the probationary employment period limitation shall not apply to a fireman whose position also includes paramedic responsibilities. (Source: P.A. 91-615, eff. 8-19-99.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Section and Section 10 take effect upon becoming law, and Section 5 takes effect on January 1, 2004."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 642, 110, 83, 131, 149 and 180.

SENATE BILL 76. Having been recalled on May 1, 2003, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up and advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 59. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Human Services, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 59 on page 3, line 22, by replacing "request" with "request, without any information identifying a patient, employee, or licensed professional"; and on page 5, line 34, by replacing "patient-identifiable information" with "information identifying a patient, employee, or licensed professional"; and on page 6, immediately below line 27, by inserting the following:

"(h) No hospital report or Department disclosure may contain information identifying a patient, employee, or licensed professional."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 58, 3, 359, 363, 374, 376, 381, 382 and 383.

SENATE BILL 385. Having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Registration & Regulation, adopted and printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 385 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Regulatory Sunset Act is amended by changing Sections 4.14 and 4.24 as follows:

(5 ILCS 80/4.14) (from Ch. 127, par. 1904.14)

Sec. 4.14. Acts repealed. (a) The following Acts are repealed December 31, 2003:

The Private Detective, Private Alarm, and Private Security Act of 1993.

~~The Illinois Occupational Therapy Practice Act.~~

(b) The following Acts are repealed January 1, 2004:

The Illinois Certified Shorthand Reporters Act of 1984.

The Veterinary Medicine and Surgery Practice Act of 1994.

(Source: P.A. 92-457, eff 8-21-01.)

(5 ILCS 80/4.24)

Sec. 4.24. Acts repealed on January 1, 2014. The following Acts are repealed on January 1, 2014:

The Electrologist Licensing Act.

The Illinois Occupational Therapy Practice Act.

The Illinois Public Accounting Act. (Source: P.A. 92-457, eff. 8-21-01; 92-750, eff. 1-1-03.)

Section 10. The Illinois Occupational Therapy Practice Act is amended by changing Sections 2, 3, 3.1, 5, 7, 8, 9, 11, and 15 as follows:

(225 ILCS 75/2) (from Ch. 111, par. 3702) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 2. Definitions. In this Act:

(1) "Department" means the Department of Professional Regulation.

(2) "Director" means the Director of Professional Regulation.

(3) "Board" means the Illinois Occupational Therapy Licensure Board appointed by the Director.

(4) "~~Registered~~ Occupational therapist" means a person initially registered and licensed to practice occupational therapy as defined in this Act, and whose license is in good standing.

(5) "~~Certified~~ Occupational therapy assistant" means a person initially registered and licensed to assist in the practice of occupational therapy under the supervision of a licensed registered occupational therapist, and to implement the occupational therapy treatment program as established by the licensed registered occupational therapist. Such program may include training in activities of daily living, the use of

therapeutic activity including task oriented activity to enhance functional performance, and guidance in the selection and use of adaptive equipment.

(6) "Occupational therapy" means the therapeutic use of purposeful and meaningful occupations or goal-directed activities to evaluate and provide interventions for individuals and populations who have a disease or disorder, an impairment, an activity limitation, or a participation restriction that interferes with their ability to function independently in their daily life roles and to promote health and wellness. Occupational therapy intervention may include any of the following:

- (a) remediation or restoration of performance abilities that are limited due to impairment in biological, physiological, psychological, or neurological processes;
- (b) adaptation of task, process, or the environment or the teaching of compensatory techniques in order to enhance performance;
- (c) disability prevention methods and techniques that facilitate the development or safe application of performance skills; and
- (d) health promotion strategies and practices that enhance performance abilities.

The licensed ~~registered~~ occupational therapist or licensed ~~certified~~ occupational therapy assistant may assume a variety of roles in his or her career including, but not limited to, practitioner, supervisor of professional students and volunteers, researcher, scholar, consultant, administrator, faculty, clinical instructor, and educator of consumers, peers, and family.

(7) "Occupational therapy services" means services that may be provided to individuals and populations including, without limitation, the following:

- (a) evaluating, developing, improving, sustaining, or restoring skills in activities of daily living, work, or productive activities, including instrumental living and play and leisure activities;
- (b) evaluating, developing, remediating ~~improving~~, or restoring sensorimotor ~~sensory-motor~~, cognitive, or psychosocial components of performance;
- (c) designing, fabricating, applying, or training in the use of assistive technology or temporary, orthoses and training in the use of orthoses and prostheses;
- (d) adapting environments and processes, including the application of ergonomic principles, to enhance performance and safety in daily life roles;
- (e) for the occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant ~~therapists~~ possessing advanced training, skill, and competency as demonstrated through examinations that shall be determined by the Department, applying physical agent modalities as an adjunct to or in preparation for engagement in occupations;
- (f) evaluating and providing intervention in collaboration with the client, family, caregiver, or others;
- (g) educating the client, family, caregiver, or others in carrying out appropriate nonskilled interventions; and
- (h) consulting with groups, programs, organizations, or communities to provide population-based services.

(8) "An aide in occupational therapy" means an individual who provides supportive services to occupational therapists or occupational therapy assistants ~~therapy practitioners~~ but who is not certified by a nationally recognized occupational therapy certifying or licensing body. (Source: P.A. 92-297, eff. 1-1-02; 92-366, eff. 1-1-02; 92-651, eff. 7-11-02.)

(225 ILCS 75/3) (from Ch. 111, par. 3703) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 3. After the effective date of this Act, no person shall practice occupational therapy or hold himself out as an occupational therapist or an occupational therapy assistant, or as being able to practice occupational therapy or to render services designated as occupational therapy in this State, unless he is licensed in accordance with the provisions of this Act.

Nothing in this Act shall be construed as preventing or restricting the practice, services, or activities of:

(1) Any person licensed in this State by any other law from engaging in the profession or occupation for which he is licensed; or

(2) Any person employed as an occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant by the Government of the United States, if such person provides occupational therapy solely under the direction or control of the organization by which he or she is employed; or

(3) Any person pursuing a course of study leading to a degree or certificate in occupational therapy at an accredited or approved educational program if such activities and services constitute a part of a supervised course of study, and if such person is designated by a title which clearly indicates his or her

status as a student or trainee; or

(4) Any person fulfilling the supervised work experience requirements of Sections 8 and 9 of this Act, if such activities and services constitute a part of the experience necessary to meet the requirement of those Sections; or

(5) Any person performing occupational therapy services in the State, if such a person is not a resident of this State and is not licensed under this Act, and if such services are performed for no more than 60 days a calendar year in association with an occupational therapist licensed under this Act and if such person meets the qualifications for license under this Act and:

(i) such person is licensed under the law of another state which has licensure requirements at least as restrictive as the requirements of this Act, or

(ii) such person meets the requirements for certification as an Occupational Therapist Registered (O.T.R.) or a Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant (C.O.T.A.) established by the National Board for Certification of Occupational Therapy or another nationally recognized credentialing body approved by the Board American Occupational Therapy Association; or

(6) The practice of occupational therapy by one who has applied in writing to the Department for a license, in form and substance satisfactory to the Department, and has complied with all the provisions of either Section 8 or 9 except the passing of the examination to be eligible to receive such license. In no event shall this exemption extend to any person for longer than 6 months, except as follows:

(i) if the date on which a person can take the next available examination authorized by the Department extends beyond 6 months from the date the person completes the occupational therapy program as required under Section 8 or 9, the Department shall extend the exemption until the results of that examination become available to the Department; or

(ii) if the Department is unable to complete its evaluation and processing of a person's application for a license within 6 months after the date on which the application is submitted to the Department in proper form, the Department shall extend the exemption until the Department has completed its evaluation and processing of the application.

In the event such applicant fails the examination, the applicant shall cease work immediately until such time as the applicant is licensed to practice occupational therapy in this State.

(7) The practice of occupational therapy by one who has applied to the Department, in form and substance satisfactory to the Department, and who is licensed to practice occupational therapy under the laws of another state, territory of the United States or country and who is qualified to receive a license under the provisions of either Section 8 or 9 of this Act. In no event shall this exemption extend to any person for longer than 6 months.

(8) The practice of occupational therapy by one who has applied to the Department, in form and substance satisfactory to the Department, and who is qualified to receive a license under the provisions of either Section 8 or 9 of this Act. In no event shall this exemption extend to any person for longer than 6 months. (Source: P.A. 90-427, eff. 8-15-97.)

(225 ILCS 75/3.1) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 3.1. Referrals. A licensed ~~registered~~ occupational therapist or licensed ~~certified~~ occupational therapy assistant may consult with, educate, evaluate, and monitor services for clients concerning non-medical occupational therapy needs. Implementation of direct occupational therapy to individuals for their specific health care conditions shall be based upon a referral from a licensed physician, dentist, podiatrist, or optometrist.

An occupational therapist shall refer to a licensed physician, dentist, optometrist, or podiatrist any patient whose medical condition should, at the time of evaluation or treatment, be determined to be beyond the scope of practice of the occupational therapist. (Source: P.A. 92-297, eff. 1-1-02.)

(225 ILCS 75/5) (from Ch. 111, par. 3705) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 5. The Director shall appoint an Illinois Occupational Therapy Licensure Board as follows: 7 persons who shall be appointed by and shall serve in an advisory capacity to the Director. One ~~4~~ member must be a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches; 3 members must be licensed ~~registered~~ occupational therapists in good standing, and actively engaged in the practice of occupational therapy in this State; 2 members must be licensed ~~certified~~ occupational therapy assistants in good standing and actively engaged in the practice of occupational therapy in this State; and 1 member must be a public member who is not licensed under this Act, or a similar Act of another jurisdiction, and is not a provider of health care service.

Members shall serve 4 year terms and until their successors are appointed and qualified. No member

shall be appointed under this or any prior Act to the Board for service which would constitute more than 2 full terms. Appointments to fill vacancies shall be made in the same manner as original appointments, for the unexpired portion of the vacated term. Initial terms shall begin upon the effective date of this Act.

The membership of the Board should reasonably reflect representation from the geographic areas in this State.

The Director may terminate the appointment of any member for cause which in the opinion of the Director reasonably justifies such termination.

The Director shall consider the recommendations of the Board on questions involving standards of professional conduct, discipline and qualifications of candidates and license holders under this Act. (Source: P.A. 88-424.)

(225 ILCS 75/7) (from Ch. 111, par. 3707) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 7. The Department shall authorize examinations at least annually and at such time and place as it may designate. The examination shall be of a character to give a fair test of the qualifications of the applicant to practice occupational therapy.

Applications for examination as occupational therapists and occupational therapy assistants shall be required to pay, either to the Department or the designated testing service, a fee covering the cost of providing the examination. Failure to appear for the examination on the scheduled date, at the time and place specified, after the applicant's application for examination has been received and acknowledged by the Department or the designated testing service, shall result in the forfeiture of the examination fee.

If an applicant neglects, fails or refuses to take the examination within 90 days after the date the Confirmation of Examination and Eligibility to Examine Notice is issued ~~next available examination offered~~ or fails to pass an examination for certification under this Act, the application shall be denied. If an applicant fails to pass an examination for registration under this Act within 3 years after filing his application, the application shall be denied. The applicant may thereafter make a new application accompanied by the required fee, however, the applicant shall meet all requirements in effect at the time of subsequent application before obtaining licensure.

The Department may employ consultants for the purposes of preparing and conducting examinations. (Source: P.A. 88-424.)

(225 ILCS 75/8) (from Ch. 111, par. 3708) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 8. A person shall be qualified for licensure as an occupational therapist if that person:

- (1) has applied in writing in form and substance to the Department;
- (2) ~~(blank) is a citizen of the United States or a lawfully admitted alien, in status, registered with the United States Department of Justice, Division of Immigration and Naturalization;~~
- (3) has completed an occupational therapy program of at least 4 years in length, leading to a baccalaureate degree, or its equivalent, approved by the Department; and
- (4) has successfully completed the examination authorized by the Department within the past 5 years.

(Source: P.A. 91-357, eff. 7-29-99.)

(225 ILCS 75/9) (from Ch. 111, par. 3709) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 9. A person shall be qualified for licensure as an occupational therapy assistant if that person:

- (1) has applied in writing in form and substance to the Department;
- (2) ~~(blank) is a citizen of the United States or a lawfully admitted alien, in status, registered with the United States Department of Justice, Division of Immigration and Naturalization;~~
- (3) has completed an occupational therapy program of at least 2 years in length leading to an associate degree, or its equivalent, approved by the Department; and
- (4) has successfully completed the examination authorized by the Department within the past 5 years.

(Source: P.A. 91-357, eff. 7-29-99.)

(225 ILCS 75/11) (from Ch. 111, par. 3711) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 11. The expiration date and renewal period for each certificate issued under this Act shall be set by rule.

Any occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant who has permitted his license to expire or who has had his license on inactive status may have his license restored by making application to the

Department and filing proof acceptable to the Department of his fitness to have his license restored. The Department may consider a certificate expired less than 5 years as prima facie evidence that the applicant is fit. If the applicant's license has expired or been placed on inactive status, proof of fitness may include sworn evidence certifying to active practice in another jurisdiction satisfactory to the Department and by paying the required restoration fee.

If the occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant has not maintained an active practice in another jurisdiction satisfactory to the Department, the Department shall determine, by an evaluation program established by rule, his fitness to resume active status and may require the occupational therapist or occupational therapy therapist assistant to successfully complete a practice examination.

However, any occupational therapist or occupational therapy assistant whose license certificate expired while he was (1) in Federal Service on active duty with the Armed Forces of the United States, or the State Militia called into service or training, or (2) in training or education under the supervision of the United States preliminary to induction into the military service, may have his certificate renewed or restored without paying any lapsed renewal fees if within 2 years after termination of such service, training or education except under conditions other than honorable, he furnished the Department with satisfactory evidence to the effect that he has been so engaged and that his service, training or education has been so terminated. (Source: P.A. 84-793.)

(225 ILCS 75/15) (from Ch. 111, par. 3715) (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2003)

Sec. 15. Any person who is issued a license as an occupational therapist registered under the terms of this Act may use the words "occupational therapist" or "licensed occupational therapist ~~registered~~", or he may use the letters "O.T" or "~~O.T.R.~~", in connection with his or her name or place of business to denote his or her licensure under this Act.

Any person who is issued a license as a ~~certified~~ occupational therapy assistant under the terms of this Act may use the words, "occupational therapy assistant" or "licensed ~~certified~~ occupational therapy assistant", or he or she may use the letters; "O.T.A." or "~~C.O.T.A.~~", in connection with his or her name; or place of business to denote his or her licensure under this Act hereunder. (Source: P.A. 83-696.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendments, the foregoing Amendment No. 1 was adopted and the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been printed, the following bills were taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILLS 402, 407, 423, 424, 490, 201 and 387.

SENATE BILLS ON THIRD READING

The following bills and any amendments adopted thereto were printed and laid upon the Members' desks. Any amendments pending were tabled pursuant to Rule 40(a).

On motion of Monique Davis, SENATE BILL 15 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 109, Yeas; 7, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 2)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Meyer, SENATE BILL 21 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 3)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 291 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 4)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Jerry Mitchell, SENATE BILL 311 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 5)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Reitz, SENATE BILL 330 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 6)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Saviano, SENATE BILL 332 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 7)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Dunkin, SENATE BILL 414 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 8)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 562 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 71, Yeas; 40, Nays; 7, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 9)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Reitz, SENATE BILL 563 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 10)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Jakobsson, SENATE BILL 1085 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 11)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 1093 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 12)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mautino, SENATE BILL 1104 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 13)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Acevedo, SENATE BILL 265 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 14)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Moffitt, SENATE BILL 1117 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 15)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 1133 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
118, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 16)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Acevedo, SENATE BILL 1175 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
91, Yeas; 23, Nays; 3, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 17)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Delgado, SENATE BILL 1176 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 18)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 1205 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
115, Yeas; 0, Nays; 2, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 19)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 1347 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 20)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative McCarthy, SENATE BILL 1375 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:
117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 21)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 1407 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 22)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Lang, SENATE BILL 1409 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 23)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Rose, SENATE BILL 1468 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 24)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

RESOLUTIONS

Having been reported out of the Committee on Executive on April 10, 2003, HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 19 was taken up for consideration.

Representative Moffitt moved the adoption of the resolution.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 25)

The motion prevailed and the Resolution was adopted.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence.

Having been reported out of the Committee on State Government on May 1, 2003, HOUSE RESOLUTION 167 was taken up for consideration.

Representative Jefferson moved the adoption of the resolution.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 26)

The motion prevailed and the Resolution was adopted.

SENATE BILL ON THIRD READING

The following bill and any amendments adopted thereto were printed and laid upon the Members' desks. Any amendments pending were tabled pursuant to Rule 40(a).

On motion of Representative Lindner, SENATE BILL 1458 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 117, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 27)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

At the hour of 1:55 o'clock p.m., Representative Currie moved that the House do now adjourn until Friday, May 9, 2003, at 10:00 o'clock a.m.

The motion prevailed.

And the House stood adjourned.

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
QUORUM ROLL CALL FOR ATTENDANCE

May 08, 2003

0 YEAS

0 NAYS

117 PRESENT

P Acevedo	P Dunkin	P Leitch	P Phelps
P Aguilar	P Dunn	P Lindner	P Pihos
P Bailey	P Eddy	P Lyons, Eileen	P Poe
P Bassi	P Feigenholtz	P Lyons, Joseph	P Reitz
P Beaubien	P Flider	P Mathias	P Rita
P Bellock	P Flowers	P Mautino	P Rose
P Berrios	P Forby	E May	P Ryg
P Biggins	P Franks	P McAuliffe	P Sacia
P Black	P Fritchey	P McCarthy	P Saviano
P Boland	P Froehlich	P McGuire	P Schmitz
P Bost	P Giles	P McKeon	P Scully
P Bradley	P Graham	P Mendoza	P Slone
P Brady	P Granberg	P Meyer	P Smith
P Brauer	P Grunloh	P Miller	P Sommer
P Brosnahan	P Hamos	P Millner	P Soto
P Burke	P Hannig	P Mitchell, Bill	P Stephens
P Capparelli	P Hassert	P Mitchell, Jerry	P Sullivan
P Chapa LaVia	P Hoffman	P Moffitt	P Tenhouse
P Churchill	P Holbrook	P Molaro	P Turner
P Collins	P Howard	P Morrow	P Verschoore
P Colvin	P Hultgren	P Mulligan	P Wait
P Coulson	P Jakobsson	P Munson	P Washington
P Cross	P Jefferson	P Myers	P Watson
P Cultra	P Jones	P Nekritz	P Winters
P Currie	P Joyce	P Novak	P Wirsing
P Daniels	P Kelly	P O'Brien	P Yarbrough
P Davis, Monique	P Kosel	P Osmond	P Younge
P Davis, Steve	P Krause	P Osterman	P Mr. Speaker
P Davis, Will	P Kurtz	P Pankau	
P Delgado	P Lang	P Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 15
VIDEOTAPED INTERROGATIONS
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

109 YEAS

7 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	N Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	N McAuliffe	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
N Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	N Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	A Hoffman	Y Moffitt	N Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
N Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 21
VEH CD-SIGNAL PREEMPTION
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 291
SHERIFF WARRANT LIABILITY
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 311
VEH CD-STOPPED SCHOOL BUS
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 330
VEH CD-TOWING-LENGTH-WEIGHT
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 332
 REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS-TECH
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 414
HOUSNG AUTHORITY-COMMISSIONERS
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	E May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 562
 ATM REVERSE PIN SENDS ALARM
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

71 YEAS

40 NAYS

7 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	N Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	N Dunn	N Lindner	N Pihos
Y Bailey	N Eddy	N Lyons, Eileen	N Poe
N Bassi	P Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	N Reitz
N Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
N Bellock	P Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	P May	Y Ryg
N Biggins	P Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
N Black	N Fritchey	N McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Froehlich	Y McGuire	N Schmitz
N Bost	Y Giles	N McKeon	P Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	N Sommer
N Brosnahan	N Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	N Mitchell, Bill	N Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	N Mitchell, Jerry	N Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	N Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	N Verschoore
Y Colvin	N Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	N Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	N Myers	N Watson
N Cultra	Y Jones	N Nekritz	N Winters
P Currie	N Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	N Kosel	N Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	P Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	N Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 563
VEH CD-TOW TRUCK WEIGHT LIMITS
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1085
 DNR-AQUIFER STUDY
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1093
VEH CODE-FLASHING LIGHTS
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1104
 INS CD-ASSOCIATION DUTIES
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 265
CRIM CD-MONEY LAUNDERING
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1117
PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS-AUTHORITY
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1133
SMALL BUSINESS ADVISORY ACT
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

118 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1175
 VEH CD-SECRET COMPARTMENTS
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

91 YEAS

23 NAYS

3 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	P Dunkin	Y Leitch	N Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	N Pihos
Y Bailey	N Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	N Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	N Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	A Saviano
Y Boland	N Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
N Bost	N Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	N Slone
Y Brady	N Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	N Grunloh	Y Miller	N Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	N Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	N Tenhouse
Y Churchill	N Holbrook	Y Molaro	P Turner
N Collins	Y Howard	P Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
N Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	N Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	N Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
N Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	N Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1176
CD CORR-SENTENCE-PROSTITUTION
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	A Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1205
 MUNI CD-LNG TERM ENRGY CONTRCT
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

115 YEAS

0 NAYS

2 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	P Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
P Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	A Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1347
 PROBATE-SUMMARY ADMIN-\$100,000
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1375
 ICCB FEDERAL TRUST FUND
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1407
COURT CLKS-PAYMENT-INTERNET
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1409
MUNI CD-EMERGENCY ENERGY PLAN
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1468
CONT SUB-METH MANUF
THIRD READING
PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 19
RONALD REAGAN TRAIL EXTEND
ADOPTED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
A Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-THIRD
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
HOUSE RESOLUTION 167
JUNETEENTH DAY OF REMEMBRANCE
ADOPTED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
A Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	Y Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-THIRD
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1458
 PROBATION OFFICER-PEACE OFF
 THIRD READING
 PASSED

May 08, 2003

117 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Phelps
Y Aguilar	Y Dunn	Y Lindner	Y Pihos
Y Bailey	Y Eddy	Y Lyons, Eileen	Y Poe
Y Bassi	Y Feigenholtz	Y Lyons, Joseph	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Flider	Y Mathias	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Flowers	Y Mautino	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Forby	Y May	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Franks	Y McAuliffe	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Fritchey	Y McCarthy	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Froehlich	Y McGuire	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Giles	Y McKeon	Y Scully
Y Bradley	Y Graham	Y Mendoza	Y Slone
Y Brady	Y Granberg	Y Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brauer	Y Grunloh	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brosnahan	Y Hamos	Y Millner	Y Soto
Y Burke	Y Hannig	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Stephens
Y Capparelli	Y Hassert	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Hoffman	Y Moffitt	Y Tenhouse
Y Churchill	Y Holbrook	Y Molaro	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Howard	Y Morrow	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hultgren	Y Mulligan	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Jakobsson	Y Munson	Y Washington
Y Cross	Y Jefferson	Y Myers	A Watson
Y Cultra	Y Jones	Y Nekritz	Y Winters
Y Currie	Y Joyce	Y Novak	Y Wirsing
Y Daniels	Y Kelly	Y O'Brien	Y Yarbrough
Y Davis, Monique	Y Kosel	Y Osmond	Y Younge
Y Davis, Steve	Y Krause	Y Osterman	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Will	Y Kurtz	Y Pankau	
Y Delgado	Y Lang	Y Parke	

E - Denotes Excused Absence